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w British Columbia Securities Commission

BCSC

QUARTERLY AND YEAR END REPORT
BC FORM 51 -901 F
(previously Form 61)

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act: The personal information requested on this form is collected under the authority of and used for
the purpose of administering the Securities Act. C) questions about the collection or use of this information can be directed to the Supervisor, Financial
Reporting (604-899-6729), PO Box 10142, Pacific Centre, 701 West Georgia Street, Vancouver BC V7Y 1L2. Toll Free in British Columbia 1-860-373-6393

INSTRUCTIONS
This report must be filed by the Exchange Issuers within 60 days of the
end of their first, second and third quarters and within 140
days of their year end. “Exchange issuer” means an issuer whose
securities are listed and posted for trading on the Canadian Venture
Exchange and are not listed and posted on any other exchange or
quoted on a trading or quotation system in Canada. Three
schedules must be attached to this report as follows:
SCHEDULE A: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles are required as follows:
For the first, second and third financial quarters:
Interim financiat statements prepared in accordance with section
1751 of the CICA Handbook, including the following: balance sheet
income statement, statement of retained eamings, cash flow
statement, and notes to the financial statements.
The periods required to be presented, consistent with CICA
Handbook Section 1751 are as follows:
+ a balance sheet as of the end of the current interim period and
a comparative balance sheet as of the end of the immediately
preceding fiscal year
+ a statement of retained eamings cumulatively for the current fiscal
year-to-date, with a comparative statement for the comparable
year-to-date period of the immediately preceding fiscal year; and
+ income statements and cash flow statements for the current
interim period and cumulatively for the current fiscal year-to-date,
with comparative statements for the comparable interim periods
(current and year-to-date) of the immediately preceding fiscal
year
For the financial year end:
Annual audited financial statements prepared on a comparative
basis.
Exchange {ssuers with a fiscal year less than or greater than 12
Months should refer to National Policy No. 51 Changes in Ending
Date of a Financial Year and in Reporting Status for guidance.
Issuers in the development stage are directed to the guidance
provided in CICA Accounting Guidelines AcG-11 Enterprises in the
Development Stage that states “enterprises in the development
Stage are encouraged to disclose in the income statement and in the
cash flow statement cumulative balances from the inception of the
development stage.”
Issues that have been involved in a reverse take-over should refer
to the guidance found in BCIN #52-701 (previously NIN #91/21) with
respect to such transactions including the requirement for disclosure
of supplementary information regarding the legal parent’s prior
financial operations.
SCHEDULE B. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
The supplementary information set out below must be provided
when not included in Schedule A.
1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs
Provide a breakdown of amounts presented in the financial
statements for the following: deferred or expensed exploration,
expensed research, deferred or expensed development, cost of
sales, marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses,
and any other material expenses reported in the income
statement and any other material deferred costs presented in the
balance sheet.

The breakdown should separately present, at a minimum, each
component that comprises 20% or more of the total amount for a
material classification presented on the face of the financial
statements. All other components of a material classification may
be grouped together under the heading "miscellaneous' or "other'
in the cost breakdown; the total for "miscellaneous"” should not
exceed 30% of the total for a material classification.

Breakdowns are required for the year-to-date period only

Breakdowns are not required for comparative periods.

Issuers in the development stage are reminded that Section

3(9)(b) of the BC Securities Commission's Rules requires a

schedule or note to the financial statements containing an

analysis of each of exploration, research, development and
administration costs, whether expensed or deferred and if the
issuer is a natural resource issuer, that analysis for each material
property. Because the analysis required by Rule 3(9)(b) must be
included in the financial statements, the information does not
have to be repeated in Schedule B. Consistent with CICA

Accounting Guidelines AcG-1 1, staff considers an issuer to be in

the development stage when it is devoting substantially all of its

operations have not commenced. Further, in staff's view, the lack
of significant revenues for the past two years normally indicates
that an issuer is in the development stage.

2. Related party transactions
Provide disclosure of all related party transactions as specified in
Section 3840 of the CICA Handbook.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the
period
Provide the following information for the year-to-date period:

(a) summary of securities issued during the period, including
date of issue, type of security (common shares, convertible
debentures, etc.), type of issue (private placement, public
offering, exercise of warrants, etc.) number, price, total
proceeds, type of consideration (cash, property, etc.) and
commission paid, and

(b) summary of options granted during the period, including
date, number, name of optionee for those options granted to
insiders, generic description of other optionees (e.g.
employees",} exercise price and expiry date.

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period
Provide the following information as at the end of the reporting
period:

(a) description of authorized share capital including number of
shares for each class, dividend rates on preferred shares
and whether or not cumulative, redemption and conversion
and

{b) number and recorded value for shares issued and
outstanding

(c) description of options, warrants and convertible securities
outstanding, including number or amount, exercise or
conversion price and expiry date, and any recorded value,
and

(d) number of shares in each class of shares subject to escrow
or pooling agreements.

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this
report is signed and filed.

FINSI-OOLE [Reverae] Rev.o000/12719




SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1. General Instructions

(a) Management discussion and analysis provides management
with the opportunity to discuss an issuer’s business, curent
financial resuilts, position and future prospects.

{b) Focus the discussion on material information, including liquidity,
capital resources, known trends, commitments, events, risks
or uncertainties, that is reasonably expected to have a
material effect on the issuer.

(c) For an issuer with active ongoing operations the discussion
should be substantive (e.g. generally two to four pages in
length); for an issuer with limited operations the discussion
may not be as extensive (e.g. one page).

(d) The discussion must be factual, balanced and non-promotional.

(e) Where the discussion relates to a mineral project, as defined in
Nationat Instrument 43-1 01 "Standards of Disclosure for
Mineral Projects,’ the disclosure must comply with NI 43-101.

2. Description of Business

Provide a brief description of the issuer’s business. Where an

issuer is inactive and has no business, disclose these facts

together with a description of any plans to reactivate and the
business the issuer intends to pursue.
3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

Provide a meaningful discussion and analysis of the issuer's

operations for the current year-to-date period presented in the

financial statements. Discuss the issuer's financial condition as

at the date of the most recent balance sheet presanted in the

financial statements.

The following is a list of items that should be addressed in

management's discussion and analysis of the issuers cperations

and financial condition. This is not intended to be an exhaustive

list of the relevant items.

(a) expenditures included in the analysis of expenses and defeired
costs required under Securities Rule 3(9)(b) and Schedule B;

(b) acquisition or abandonment of resource properties material to
the issuer including material terms of any acquisition ‘or disposition;

(c) acquisition or disposition of other material capital assets
including material terms of the acquisition, or disposition;

(d) material write-off or write-down of assets;

(e) transactions with related parties, disclosed in Schedule B or the
notes to the financial statements;

(f) material contracts or commitments;

(g) material variances between the issuer's financial results and
information previously disclosed by the issuer, (for example if
the issuer does not achieve revenue and profit estimates
previously released, discuss this fact and the reasons for the
variance);

(h) material terms of any existing third party investor refations
arrangements or contracts including:

i. the name of the person;
ii. the amount paid during the reporting period; and
jii. the services provided during the reporting period;
legal proceedings;
contingent liabilities;
defauit under debt or other contractual obligations;
a breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or of an
issuer's listing agreement with the Canadian Venture
exchange including the nature of the breach, potential
ramifications and what is being done to remedy it;
regulatory approval requirements for a significant transaction
including whether the issuer has obtained the required
approval or has applied for the approval;
(n) management changes; or
(o) special resolutions passed by shareholders.
4. Subsequent Events
Discuss any significant events and transactions that occurred
during the time from the date of the financial statements up to the
date that this report is certified by the issuer.
5. Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones
(a) In a tabular format, compare any previcusly disclosed principal
purposes from a financing to actual expenditures made during
the reporting period.
(b) Explain any material variances and the impact, if any, on the
issuer's ability to achieve previously disclosed objectives and
: milastones.
6. Liquidity and Solvency
Discuss the issuer's working capital position and its ability to meet
iis ongaing obligations as they become due.
How to File Under National Instrument 13-101 - System for
Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR)
BC Form 51 -901 F Quarterly and Year End Reports are filed under
Category of Filing: Continuous Disclosure and Filing Type: Interim
Financial Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule A
(Financial Statements) is filed under Document Type: Interim Financial
Statements or Annuai Financial Statements. Schedule B
(Supplementary Information) and Schedule C (Management
Discussion) are f lled under Document Type: BC Form 51 -801 F
(previously Document Type Form 61 (BC)).
Meeting the Form Requirements
BC Form 51 -901 F consists of three parts: Instructions to schedules A,
B and C, issuer details and a certificate. To comply with National
Instrument 13-1 01 it is not necessary to reproduce the instructions that
are set out in BC Form 51 -901 F. A cover page to the schedules titled
BC Form 51 -901 F that includes the issuer details and certificate is all
that is required to meet the BC Form 51 -901 F requirements. The form
of certificate should be amended so as to refer to one or two of the
three schedules required to complete the report.

(m)

ISSUER DETAILS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DATE OF REFORT
AME OF ISSUE YY/MMDD

International Tower Hill Mines Ltd. November 30, 2001 02/01/03

ISSUER'S ADDRESS

837 West Hastings Street, Suite 507

CITY/PROVINCE POSTAL CODE ISSUER FAX NO. ISSUER TELEPHONE NO.

Vancouver, BC V6C 3N6 (604) 685-5777 (604) 685-1017

CONTACT PERSON CONTACT'S POSITION CONTACT TELEPHONE NO.

Anton (Tony) J. Drescher Director (604) 685-1017

CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS WEB SITE ADDRESS

mail@harbourpacific.com www.towerhillmines.com

CERTIFICATE

The three schedules required to complete this Quarterly Report are attached and the disclosure contained therein has been approved by the board of Directors. A

copy of this Quarterly Report will be provided to any shareholder who requests it.

DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED
Y|M M|[D D
¥ “Anton (Tony) J. Drescher” Anton (Tony) J. Drescher 0{2]0|1]0/|3
)
DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED
Y Y|M M|D D
> “Norman J. Bonin” Norman . Bonin ol2/o0l1]0]3

FINSI-S0IF (Reverse}l Rev.z000/12/19
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International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
(Prepared by Management)
(Unaudited) :

Six Months Year Ended
November 30, 2001 May 31, 2001
Assets
Current
Cash and cash equivalents $ 337227 $ 366,527
Guaranteed investment certificate - 104,072
Marketable securities (note 3) 37,520 37,520
Accounts receivable 5,410 6,937
Prepaid expenses 754 2,266
380,911 517,322
Term deposit (note 4a) 2,500 2,500
Mineral properties (note 4) 1,103,778 1,043,727
~$ 1,487,189 § 1,663,549
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 10,256 $ 11,855
Share Capital and Deficit
Share capital (note 5) 3,515,664 3,515,664
Deficit (2,038,731) (1,963,970)
1,476,933 1,551,694
$ 1487189 § 1,563,549

Commitments (note 4)

Approved by the Directors:

“Anton J. Drescher” Director

“Norm J. Bonin” Director




imntemationas 1ower il Mines td.

Consolidated Statement of Deficit
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
(Prepared by Management)

{(Unaudited)
For the three months ended For the six months ended
November 30, November 30, November 30, November 30,
' 2001 2000 2001 2000

Income :

Interest $ 5,701 9,784 10,250 $ 12,174
- Expenses
Management fees 7,500 7,560 15,000 15,000
Office and miscellaneous 2,032 2,044 3,226 2,157
Professional fees 2,380 12,734 41,359 15,195
Rent 1,800 1,800 3,600 3,600
Stock exchange and filing fees 9,496 2,466 19,194 3,211
Transfer agent fees 1,042 1,116 1,670 2,081
Travel and promotion 468 1,195 962 1,529
24,718 28,855 85,011 42,773
Loss frem operations (19.017) (19,071) (74,761) (30,599)
Othér items

Gain on saie of marketabie securities : - 5,478 - 18,623
(Loss) Incomie for the period (19,017) (12,593) (74,761) (11,976)
Deficit, beginning of period (2,019,714) (1,878,000) (1,963,970) (1,878,617)

Deficit, end of period

$ (2,038,731)

$ (1,890,593)

$ (2,038,731) $ (1,890,593)

Income (loss) per share' (note 6)

$ ~ (0.002)

(0.004)

(0.008)

(0.001)

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding

8,882,411

7:.377,828

8,882,411

7,377,828




International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited) ’
For the three months ended For the six months ended
November 30, November 30, November 30, November 30,
2001 2000 2001 2000
Cash provided by (used for)
Operating activities | _
(Loss)income for the period $ (19,017) $(12,593) $ . (74,761) - $(11,976
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash | |
~ Gain on sale of marketable securities - (6,478) - (18,623
(19,017) (19,071) (7'4,761) (30,599
Changes in non-cash items:
Accounts receivable | 5,952 (12,800) 1,527 (8,438
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,134 30,653 {1,599) 25,51¢
Prepaid expenses 752 738 1,512 1,48(
Due to directors (3,000) - - <
(13,179) (480) (73,321) (12,038
Financing activity co
Shares issued for cash - 145,000 - 145,00(
- Shares Subscribe - (90,000) - ‘ :
- 55,000 - 145,00(
Investing activities -
Proceeds of disposition of marketable - 37,168 . 65,48:
securities , A N ‘
Mineral property exploration costs (18,767) (60,454) (60,051) (74,473
Proceeds on sale of guaranteed investment - - 104,072 :
(18,767) (23,286) 44,021 (8,990
(Decrease)increase in cash and cash (31,946) 31,234 (29,300) 123,97
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 369,173 400,397 366,527 307,65¢
period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 337227 § 431631 $ 337,227 $ 431,63




international rower fill vines Lia.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)

November 30, 2001

1.

Nature of Operations

The Company is in the business of acquiring, exploring and evaluating mineral properties, and either
joint venturing or developing these properties further or disposing of them when the evaluation is

- completed. At November 30, 2001, the Company was in the exploration stage and had interests in

properties in British Columbia, Alberta and Quebec, Canada.

The recoverability of amounts shown as mineral properties and deferred exploration costs is dependent
upon the existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary

-financing to complete their development, and future profitable production or disposition thereof.

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an interest, in
accordance with industry standards for the current stage of exploration of such properties, these
procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title. Property title may be subject to unregistered prior
agreements and non-compliance with regulatory requirements.

| Significant Accounting Pelicies

The following is a summary of the signiﬁcaht aécounting policies uséd by management in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

a) Basis of consolidation

These consolidaiéd financial statements include the accounts of International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.
and its wholly owned subsidiary 813034 Alberta Ltd (“813034"), an Alberta corporation. 813034 was
incorporated during 1999 and has no operations.

b) Marketable securities

Marketable securities are valued at the lower of cost or markst.
¢) Mineral properties

Mineral properties consist of exploration and mining concessions, options and contracts. Acquisition
and leasehold costs and exploration costs are capitalized and deferred until such time as the
property is put into production or the properties are disposed of either through sale or abandonment.
If put into production, the costs of acquisition and exploration will be written off over the life of the
property, based on estimated economic reserves. Proceeds received from the sale of any interest in

- a property will first be credited against the carrying value of the property, with any excess included in
operations for the period. If a property is abandoned, the property and deferred exploration costs will
be written off to operations.

d) Income (loss) per share

Income (loss) per share amounts have been calculated based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year. Fully diluted per share information is calculated as if all
warrants outstanding at year end were converted at the later of the beginning of the year or the date
of issuance.

w




International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited) :

November 30, 2001

g) Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

e)

Cash equivaients

The company considers cash equivaients to consist of highly liquid investments with a remaining
maturity of three months or less when purchased. : ' '

~ f) Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities resulting from- foreign currency transactions are translated into
Canadian dollars using the year end conversion rates. Acqmsmon and exploratlon costs have been
translated at the dates of occurrence.

g) Financial instruments
The fair value of cash, guaranteed investment certificates, term deposits, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and amounts due to directors approxirnate their carrying
value due to the relatively short periods to maturity of these financial instruments.

h) Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generaily accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenduures during the reportlng penod Actual results could
differ from those reported.

i) Income tax
Income taxes are accounted for using the future income tax method Tax benefits have not been
recorded due to uncertainty regarding their utilization.

j) Joint venture accounting
Where the company’s exploration' and development activities are conducted with others, the
accounts reflect only the company’s proportionate interest in such activities.

3. Marketable Securities
November 30, May 31,
2001 2001
Marum Resources Inc. (market vaiue $46,900) ' ) $ 37520 $ 37,520

At November 30, the Company held 469,000 shares of Marum Resources Inc. (2000 — 469,000 shares;
market value $37,520), acquired as part of the mvest'nent in lhe Chinchdga ioint venture, with an
historical cost of $51, 590




tnternationat ower Rl Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)

November 30, 2001

4, | Mineral Propertieé

Accumulated costs in respect of mineral claims owned, leased or under option, consist of the following:

Siwash Chinchaga Tomgat Nevember 30, May 31,
Siiver Project Froperties 2001 2001
Leases : Total Total
Acquisition costs _
Beginning balance $ 180,000 $ ' - $ 21,950 _ $ 201950 $ 178,600
Lease costs 12,500 - 5,800 . 18,300 23,350
Ending balance 192,500 : - 27,750 220,250 201,950
Deferred exploration
. Beginning balance 713,182 50,000 78,595 841,777 739,209
* Drilting 27,499 . - - 27,492 40,000
Mapping and sampling 3,378 - - 3,378 11,445
Surveying 10,874 - - 10.874 51,123
oy Ending balance 754,933 50,000 78,895 L 883,528 841,777
* Total deferred costs § 947433 $ ‘ 50,00¢ $§ 106,345 $ 1,103,778 $ 1,043,727

a) Siwash Silver Leases

i)

On October 27, 1987, the Company was granted an opiion to acquire a 100% interest in certain mineral

‘claims situated in the Similkameen Mining Division of British Columbia.

The agreement required total céhsideration of $1(_30,000 to bé paid as follows:

$ 6,000 ~ upon closing {paid);
$ 4,000 . onoerbefore April 3, 1988 (paid);
$ 10,000 .. on or befars Qctober 2, 1988 (paid);
$ 10,000 on or before October 3, 1989 (paid); and
~$10,000 each subsequent vear thereafter until October 3, 2002

On March 18,‘1 991, an amendment was made to the agreement dated October 27, 1987 to change the
payments to be made to the optionor. The amended payments are as follows:

$10,000 on or before October 3, 1990 (paid)
$12,500 each subsequent year thereafter until October 3, 2002.
{October 3, 2000 and prior pavments were made)

' ~ On November 17, 1987, the Company paid $1,000 to Brenda Mines Ltd. (Brenda) to obtain certain

information on this property and gave Brenda the option to provide production financing should the
property come into production in the future. The Company has granted Brenda an option to acquire a
51% interest in the property for 90 days following a- positive production recommendation by an
independent consulting firm. Terms of the option include reimbursing all exploration and feasibility study
expenditures incurred to that date up to a total of $2 million and providing all capital required to bring the
property into production. In the event that the property generates a positive cash flow, Brenda will retain
80% of profits until all development capital plus interest has been repaid, at which time proceeds will be
distributed based on interest in the project.

10



International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)

November 30, 2001

4, Mineral Properties (cont'd)

b)

If the Company decides to sell any or all of its interest in the property to a third party, it must first offer that
interest to Brenda on the same terms and Brenda shall have 60 days to advise the company of its

decision.

The Company has pledged a $2 500 term deposit as reclamation secunty as required by the Province of
British Columbia.

ii) On September 18, 1996, the Company acquired a 100% interest in certain mineral claims situated
adjacent to the Similkameen Mining Division of British Columbia. The purchase price of the claims was
$15,000 (paid) and upon commencement of production of valuable minerals from the claims, the vendor
will receive a royalty of 1% of net smelter returns. .

During May 2001 and conti‘nuing through November 2001 ihe Company commenced a drilling program
on the leases. Total exploration expenses of $60,454 were incurred during this period. .

Chinchaga Project

On January 29 1999 the company entered a Jomt venture agreement wnth Marum Resources Inc. to explore
for diamonds in the Chinchaga area of northern Alberta, Canada. The company must contribute $300,000 by
way of cash or cash equivalents, whereby a maximum contribution of $100,000 can be made through private
placement for shares in Marum Resources Inc.. The company will receive 50% mterest in Marum's working
interest in the three townchips of the Chinchaga area. ;

The agreement required total consideration of $300,000 to he paid as follows

$ 150,000 ~ before June 30, 1999 for first 25% interest
$ 150,000 (amended) " before September 30, 2000 for remaining 25% interest

During 1999 the Company exercised its option to purchase the 1,000,000 private placement units of Marum
Resources Inc. for $1006,000 and expended $56,000 for the deveiopment of the Chinchaga project. Each
private placement unit contains one common share and one non-transferable share purchase warrant to
purchase one additional common share at a price of $0.12 per share, exercisable for a period of two years
from the date of payment for the units. During fiscal 2000 the Company exercised the 1,000,000 warrants and
purchased 1,000,000 shares of Marum for $120,000.

During fiscal 2001 the Company and Marurm amended the agreement whereby the Company has now eamed
its 50% interest in the project through the advance of $270,000 as detailed above. At November 30, 2001 no
further activity had transpired and no adjustments to the joint venture contribution have been recorded.

Torngat Property

During November 1999, the Company was granted two (2) exploration permits totalling 108.5 square
kilometers in northern Quebec, know as the Torngat property. The Company has commenced aerial
exploration and surveying of the kimberlite dike area under an arrangement with four other companies
whereby common costs are shared. As part of the permits, the Quebec government has agreed to reimburse
50% of exploration expenditures up to a maximum of $220,000. The Company has received $26,300 in
reimbursement for expenses from the Quebec government.

11




International Tower Hiil Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudlted)

November 30 2001

5. Share Capital
Authorized:
20,000,000 common shares without par value
November 30, 2001 May 31, 2001
: Number ' Number of
Issued ‘ of Shares Amount Shares Armount

Balance, beginning and end 9,012,183 $ 3,515,664 9,012,183 § 3,515,664
of period

Earnings Per Share
Fully diluted earnings per share has not been disclosed in 2000 as the results are not materially dilutive.

The effect of potentially dilutive securities are notincluded in the calculation of fully diluted earnings per
share as the result would be anti-dilutive.

Related Party Transactions

During the period the company paid $ 15,000 (2’000'- $15,000) in management fees and $909 (2000 -
$749) in professional fees to a company controlled by an individual who is a director of the company.

Income Taxes

The Company has resource deduction tax pools of approxlmately $2,275,000 available to offset future
taxable income.

Differences between Canadian and United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(“GAAP")

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP in Canada, which differed in some
respects from GAAP in the United States. The material differences between Canadian and United
States GAAP, in respect of these financial statements, are as follows:

12




International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)

November 30, 2001

a) Mineral property exploration and development

Under United States GAAP, all mineral exploration and development property expenditures are
expensed in the year incurred in an exploration stage company until there is substantial evidence
that a commercial body of ore has been located. Canadian GAAP allows resource exploration and
The effect on the

development property expenditures to be deferred during this process
Company's financial statements is summarized beiow:

Six months " Six months
November 30, November 30,
2001 200C
Consolidated statement of
operations and deficit
Income (loss) for the period under ’
Canadian GAAP $ (74,761) $(11,976)
Write off of exploration expenses - -
Mineral property exploration and : o '
development expenditures (60,051) (74,473)
United States GAAP - -§ (134,812) '$ (86,449)
Gain (loss) per share — US GAAP $ (0.01) §  (0.01)
Consolidated balance sheet
Assets
Mineral Properties S -
Canadian GAAP $ 1,103,778 $ 992,282
Resource property expenditures
(cumulative) : (889.328) ... (812,282)
United States GAAP $ 214,450 $ . 180,000
Deficit
Canadian GAAP $(2,038,731)  $(1,890,593)
Resource property expenditures
(cumulative) (889,328) (812,282)
United States GAAP $(2,928,059) $(2,702,875)
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International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Exprassed in Cainadian dojlars)

(Prepared by Management) -

(Unaudited) o

‘November 30, 2001

‘9. . Differences between Canadian and United States Generaliy Accepted Accounting Principies
(“GAAP") continued

b

Marketable Securities

Under United States GAAP, the Company would classify the marketable securities as “Securities
avaiiable for resale”. The carrying value on the balance sheet at November 30, 2001 would remain
at $37,520 (2000 -$95,52C) and the unrealized gain (loss) would be posted to shareholder’s equity
$Nii (2000 - $Nil). There would be no impact on the consolidated statement of operations in 2001
and 2000. :

income Taxes -

Under United States GAAP, the Company would have initialiy recorded an income tax asset for the
benefit of the resource deduction pools and losses carried forward. This asset would have been

~ reduced to $nil by a valuation allowance.
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The breakdown should separately present, at a minimum, each
companent that comprises 20% or more of the total amount for a
material classification presented on the face of the financial
statements. All other components of a material classification may
be grouped together under the heading "miscelianeous' or "other’
. in the cost breakdown; the total for "rniscellaneous” should not
. exceed 30% of the total for a material classification.
- Breakdowns are required for the year-to-date period only
Breakdowns are not required for comparative periods.
Issuers in the development stage are reminded that Section
3(9)(b) of the BC Securities Commission's Rules requires a
For the first, second and third financjal quarters: schedule or note to the financis! statements containing an
Interim financial statements prepared in accordance with section analysis of each of exploration, research, development and
1751 of the CICA Handbook, including the following: balance sheet \ ‘ - administration costs, whether expensed or deferred and if the
income statement, statement of retained eamings, cash flow * o " issuer is a natural resource issuer, that analysis for each material
statement, and riotes to the financial statements. a . property. Because the analysis required by Rule 3(9)(b) must be
The periods required to be presented, consistent with CICA included in the financial statements, the information does not
Handbook Section 1751 are as follows: have to be repeated in Schedule B. Consistent with CICA
+ a balance sheet as of the end of the current interim period and Accounting Guidelines AcG-1 1, staff considers an issuer to be in
a comparative balance sheet as of the end of the lmmedlalely the development stage when it is devoting substantially all of its
preceding fiscal year operations have not commenced. Further, in staff's view, the lack

INSTRUCTIONS

This report must be filed by the Exchange Issuers within 60 days of the
end of their first, second and third quarters and within 140 '
days of their year end. “Exchange issuer” means an issuer whose
securities are listed and posted for trading on the Canadian Venture
Exchange and are not listed and posted on any other exchange or
quoted on a trading or quotation system in Canada. Three
schedules must be attached to this report as follows:

SCHEDULE A: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles are required as follows:

+ a statement of retained eamings cumulatively for the current fiscal

year-to-date, with a comparative statement for the comparable
year-to-date period of the immediately preceding fiscal year; and
income statements and cash flow statements for the current
interim period and cumulatively for the current fiscal year-to-date,
with comparative statements for the comparable interim periods
(current and year-to-date) of the immediately preceding fiscal
year

For the financial year end:

of significant revenues for the past two years normally indicates
that an issuer is in the development stage.

Related party transactions

Provide disclosure of all related party transactions as specified in
Section 3840 of the CICA Handbook.

Summary of securities issued and options granted dunng the
period

Provide the following information for the year-to-date period:

(a) summary of securities issued during the period, including

Annual audited financial statements prepared on a comparative date of issue, type of security (common shares, convertible
basis. debentures, etc.), type of issue (private placement, public

Exchange Issuers with a fiscal year less than or greater than 12 offering, exercise of warrants, etc.) number, price, total
Months should refer to National Policy No. 51 Changes in Ending proceeds, type of consideration (cash, property, etc.) and

Date of a Financial Year and in Reporting Status for guidance.
Issuers in the development stage are directed to the guidance
provided in CICA Accounting Guidelines AcG-11 Enterprises in the
Development Stage that states “enterprises in the development
Stage are encouraged to disclose in the income statement and in the
cash flow statement cumulative balances from the inception of the
development stage.”

Issues that have been involved in a reverse take-over should refer
to the guidance found in BCIN #52-701 (previously NIN #91/21) with
respect to such transactions including the requirement for disclosure
of supplementary information regarding the legal parent’s prior
financial operations.

SCHEDULE B. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The supplementary information set out below must be provided
when not included in Schedule A.

1.

Analysis of expenses and deferred costs

Provide a breakdown of amounts presented in the financial
statements for the following: deferred or expensed exploration,
expensed research, deferred or expensed development, cost of
sales, marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses,
and any other material expenses reported in the income
statement and any other material deferred costs presented in the
balance sheet.

commission paid, and

(b} summary of options granted during the period, including
date, number, name of optionee for those options granted to
insiders, generic description of other optionees (e.g.
employees",) exercise price and expiry date.

Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period

Provide the following information as at the end of the reporting

period:

(a) description of authorized share capital including number of
shares for each class, dividend rates on preferred shares
and whether or not cumulative, redemption and conversion
and

(b) number and recorded value for shares issued and
outstanding

(c) description of options, warrants and convertible securities
outstanding, including number or amount, exercise or
conversion price and expiry date, and any recorded value,
and

(d)} number of shares in each class of shares subject to escrow
or pooling agreements.

List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this

report is signed and filed.

FINSHSOIF(Roverse) Rev.2000/12/19




SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS -
1. General Instructions

(a) Management discussion and analysis provides management
with the opportunity to discuss an issuer’s business, current
financial results, position and future prospects.

{b) Focus the discussion on material information, including liquidity,
capital resources, known trends, commitments, events, risks
or uncertainties, that is reasonably expacted tc have a
materizl effect on the issuer.

(c) For an issuer with active ongoing operations the discussion
should be substantive (e.g. generally two to four pages in
length); for an issuer with limited operations the discussion
may not be as extensive (e.g. one page).

(d) The discussion must be factual, balanced and non-promotional.

(e) Where the discussion relates to a mineral project, as defined in
National instrument 43-1 01 "Standards of Disclosure for

Mineral Projects,’ the disclosure must comply with NI 43-101. ; 4.

2. Description of Business
Provide a brief description of the issuer's business. Where an
issuer is inactive and has no business, disclose these facts

together with a description of any plans to reactivate and the 5.

business the issuer intends to pursue.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition
Provide a2 meaningful discussion and analysis of the issuer's
operations for the current year-to-date period presented in the
financial statements. Discuss the issuer's financial condition as
at the date of the most recent balance sheet presented in the

financial statements. -~ - - - f— . 6.

The following is a list of items that should be addressed in
management's discussion and analysis of the issuer’s operations
and financial condition. This is not intended to be an exhaustive

list of the relevant items.

(a) expenditures included in the analysis of expenses and deferred
costs required under Securities Rule 3(9)(b) and Schedule B;

{b) acquisition or abandonment of resource properties material to
the issuer including material terms of any acquisition or disposition;

(¢c) acquisition or disposition of other material capital assets
including material terms of the acquisition, or dispositicn;

(d) material write-off or write-down of assets;

(e) transactions with refated parties, disclosed in Schedute B or the -
notes to the financial statements;

() material contracts or commitments;

(g) material variances between the issuer's financial results and
information previously disciosed by the issuer, (for example if
the issuer does not achieve revenue and profit estimates
previously released, discuss this fact and the reasons for the
variance);

(h) material terms of any existing third party investor relations
arrangements or contracts including:

i. the name of the person;
ii. the amount paid during the reporting period; and
iii.-the services provided during the reporting period;

(i) legai proceedings;

(i) contingent liabilities;

(k) default under debt or other contractual obligations;

() abreach of corporate, securities or other laws, or of an
issuer's listing agreement with the Canadian Venture
exchange including the nature of the breach, potential
ramifications and what is being done to remedy it;

(m) regulatory approval requirements for a significant transaction
inciuding whether the issuer has obtained the required
approval or has applied for the approval;

(n) management changes; or

(o) special resolutions passed by shareholders.

Subsequernt Everits

Discuss any significant events and transactions that occurred

during the time frorn the date of the financial statements up to the

date that this report is certified by the issuer.

Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones

{a) In a tabular format, compare any previously disclosed principai

_ purposes from a financing to actual expenditures made during
the reporting period.

(b) Explain any material variances and the impact, if any, on the
issuer's ability to achieve previously disclosed objectives and
milestones. -

Liquidity and Solvency -

Discuss the issuer's working capital posutlon and its ability to meet

its ongoing obligations as they become due.

How to File Under National Instrument 13-101 - System for

Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR)

BC Form 51 -901 F Quarterly and Year End Reports are filed under

Category of Filing: Continuous Disclosure and Filing Type: Interim

Financial Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule A

(Financial Statements) is filed under Document Type: Interim Financial

Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule B
{Supplementary informaticn) and Schedule C (Management
Discussion) are f !led under Document Type: BC Form 51 -801 F
(previcusly Document Type Farm 61 (BC)).

Meeting the Form Requirements

BC Form 51 -901 F consists of three parts: Instructions to schedules A,

B and C, issuer details and a certificate. To comply with National

Instrument 13-1 01 it is not necessary to reproduce the instructions that

are set out in BC Form 51 -901 F. A cover page to the schedules titled
BC Form 51 -901 F that includes the issuer details and certificate is all
that is required to meet the BC Form 51 -901 F requirements. The form

of certificate should be amended so as to refer to one or two of the
three schedules required to complete the report.

ISSUER DETAILS
NAME OF ISSUER

International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.

FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DATE OF REPORT
YY/MM/DD

November 30, 2001 02/01/03

ISSUER'S ADDRESS
837 West Hastings Street, Suite 507

CITY/PROVINCE POSTAL CODE
Vancouver, BC ’ ’ V6C 3N6

ISSUER FAX NO. ISSUER TELEPHONE NO.
(€04) 685-5777 (604) 685-1017

CONTACT PERSON CONTACT'S POSITION
Anton (Tony) J. Drescher Director

CONTACT TELEPHONE NO.
(604) 685-1017

CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS WEB SITE ADDRESS

mail@harbourpacific.com www.towerhillmines.com

CERTIFICATE

The three schedules required to complete this Quarterly Report are attached and the djsclosure contained therein has been approved by the board of Directors.

A copy of this Quarterly Report will be provided to any shareholder who requests it.

DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED

Y vY|M M[D D
» “Anton (Tony) J. Drescher” Anton (Tony) J. Drescher 0 | 210 l 1]0 I 3
DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED

Y Y|M M|D D
» “Narman J. Bonin” Norman J. Bonin 0 | 210 ' 1{0 ' 3

FINSISUIF(Revers) Rev. 2000412019



INTERNATIONAL TOWER HILL MINES LTD.
' FORM 51-901F - o
- for the six months ended November 30, 2001

A. Deferred Exploration Expenses
- See Note 4 — Mineral Properties

B. Aggregate amount of non-arms’s length transactions
- - See Note 7 — Related Party Transactions

A Securities 1ssued during the period under review
- See Note 5 Share Capital '

B. Options granted durmg the period under review
- None

A Share capital at end of 'quarter

- Authorized: | 20,000,000 common shares with no par value
Issued: 9,012,183 common shares

B. Options and warrants ou{standing at end of quarter -.
Options - none
Warrants - none

List of officers and directors as at November 30, 2001

Officers: Anton J. Drescher — President; Donna Moroney — Secretary .

Directors: Anton J. Drescher; Norman J. Bonin; Rol‘and Perkins




INTERNATIONAL TOWER HILL MINES LTD.
Form 51 — Page 2
for the six months ended November 30, 2001

Schedule C: Management Discussion

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Company is in the business of acqﬁiring, éxploring and evaluating mineral properties, and
either joint venturing or developing these properties further or disposing of them when the

evaluation is completed. At November 30, 2001, the Company was in the exploration stage
and had interests in properties in British Columbia, Alberta and Quebec, Canada.

2. EQUITY FINANCING
No stock opticns were granted nor exercised during the period. '
3 ~ EXPLORATION / PROPERTY UPDA_.TE 1

a) Exploration Permits granted — Torngat exploration area - Northern Quebec

During November 1999, the Company acquired a 100% interest in two Quebec Mineral
Exploration Permits in the Torngat diamond exploration area of Northern Quebec for a total
consideration of $11,100. Additional lease maintenance costs of $16,650 were paid to date.

Permit 1467 covers 58 square kms Permit 1487 covers 50.5 square kms. Both permits adjoin
the kimberlite dyke-bearing property held by Twin Gold Corporation (TWGT). '

The Company completed its 2000 Torngat diamond exploration program in northern Quebec.
Two helicopter-supported mapping and sampling programs were carried out in August and
September. The objective of the 2000 Torngat exploration program was to catalogue
kimberlite dykes that were visible from the air and to take samples for geochemical analysis.
One large 5-metre wide dyke was discovered. Its linear extent remains unknown. Geochemical
analysis indicates that the kimberlite originated in the diamond stability field and is a potential
diamond host. One sample was submitted for caustic dissolution and no diamonds were
- recovered. The Company incurred exploration costs and mineral lease costs totalling $5,800
_during the six-month period ended November 30, 2001. The Company intends to carry out a
"y'follow-up sampling and mapping program in mid-2002. Its objectives will be to take
significantly larger samples from various locations on the 5-metre wide dyke and to explore
for additional dykes on the basis of airborne geophysical data.



INTERNATIONAL TOWER HILL MINES LTD.
Form 51 — Page 3
for the six months ended November 30, 2001

b) Chinchaga Diamond and Metals Project — Northern Alberta

During the period, the Company did not incur any exploration costs with regards to the
Chinchaga Diamond and Metals Project, Northern Alberta. The Company is evaluating the
results of past exploration and is 1mplementmg a land management program to coiricide with
the end of the first assessinent work cycle s :

c) Siwash Creek Project — Similkameen Mining Division of British Columbia -

The Company commenced its Spring 2001 diamond drill program on its 160% owned Siwash
Property in south-central British Columbia. The Siwash Property is located in close proximity
to both Brenda Mines Ltd. (copper and molybdenum production) and Fairfield Minerals Ltd.
(gold production) mineral projects. The 2001 program has been designed to further delineate
the gold, silver and copper values intersected in the northeastern portion of the property. Drill
results to date indicate a similar style of mineralization as that found at Brenda Mines. In
addition, these drill results indicate' that the gold/silver/copper mineralization extends
approximately 300 meters in a north-south direction and 600 meters in an east-west direction
‘to a depth of approximately 125 meters. Dnlhng aiso 1nd1cates that this zone is still open to
the west, north, east and depth.

The 2001 drill program will compose of five drill holes varying from 150 meters to 250
‘meters, AZ 0° dip varying from —55° to 65° and will be concentrated in the area north and east
of holes 96-3, 97-1 and 97-5. All holes will be drilled in the mineralized granodiorite. For the
'six-month period ended November 30, 2001, the Company incurred total exploration expenses
of $41,751, which had been incurred and paid. The Company also 1ncurred $12 500 on lease
costs.

The Company will advise further as results of the p:rogramrare receiyed.
4. CORPORATE BUSINESS

a) General and Administrative costs for the six months ended _Nove'mber'30, 2001 were
$85,011 (2000: $42,773) representing an increase of $42,238. The majority of the
increase in general and administrative expenses was due to an increase in professional
fees of $26,164 to $41,359 for the fiscal period ended November 30, 2001 (2000:
$15,195). This increase in professional fees was due to the Company’s costs for listing
on Berlin and Frankfurt Stock Exchanges and completion of the Company’s 20F filing
with the US Securities and Exchange Commission. There was also an increase in Stock
exchange and filing fees of $15,983 to $19,194 for the fiscal period ended November
30,2001(2000:$3,211).This increase was due to filing fees on the Berlin and Frankfurt
Stock Exchanges. Included in the General and Administrative costs are $15,000 (2000:
$15,000) in management fees.
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Form 51 —- Page 4
for the six months ended Novembu 30, 2001

Dunng the penod the Company paid $909 (2000: $749) in professional fees to a
company controlled by an individual who is an officer of the Company. Interest
income for the period ended November 30, 2001 was $10,250 compared to $12,174 for
-the period ended November 30, 2000. The decrease in interest income is a result of the
decrease of interest rates and redemption of guaranteed investment certificate.

b)  The Company did not incur any specific expenditures Vrelating te investor relations
activities for the period ended November 30, 2001 and up to the date of this report.
Investor relations activities were conducted in-house by management.

5 OTHER

- The Company’s Form 20F Registration Statement has been filed with the United States
Securitics and Exchange Commissivn and is effective under File No. 0-31096. This
registration satisfies the Exchange Act requirement of full disclosure of all material facts and
- allows the Company to trade its securities in the United States within the rules and regulations
of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act.

The Company was approved for listing on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and began trading
October 3, 2001 under the trading symbol “TW9”. This listing is in addition to the Beriin
Stock Exchange - unofficial Regulated Market listing announced in July of this year. Share
quotes can be found at WWW. comdirect.de or www. berlmerboerse de/english/aktien/.

: The Company’s shares commenced trading on the NASD OTC Bulletin Board under the
trading symbol TWHMTF effective October 5, 2001.
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INSTRUCTIONS
This report must be filed by the Exchange Issuers within 60 days of the
end of their first, second and third quarters and within 140
days of their year end. “Exchange issuer” means an issuer whose
securities are listed and posted for trading on the Canadian Venture
Exchange and are not listed and posted on any other éxchange or
quoted on a trading or quotation system in Canada. Three
schedules must be attached to this report as follows:
SCHEDULE A: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles are required as follows:
For the first, second and third financial quarters:
Interim financial statements prepared in accordance with section
1751 of the CICA Handbook, including the following: balance sheet
income statement, statement of retained eamings, cashflow . =
statement, and notes to.the financial statements.
The periods required to be presented, consistent wnth CICA ’
Handbook Section 1751 are as follows:
+ a balance sheet as of the end of the current interim penod and
a comparative balance sheet as of the end of the immediately
preceding fiscal year
+ a statement of retained eamings cumulatively for the current fiscal
year-to-date, with a comparative statement for the comparable -~
year-to-date ‘period of the immediately preceding fiscal year; and
- income statements and cash flow statements for the current
interim period znd cumulatively for the current fiscal year-to-date,
with comparative statements for the comparable interim periods
(current and year-to-date) of the immediately preceding fiscal
year
For the financial year end:
Annual audited financial siatements prepared on a comparatlve
basis.
Exchange Issuers with a fiscal year less than or greater than 12
Months should refer to National Policy No. 51 Changes in Ending
Date of a Financial Year and in Reporting Status for guidance.
Issuers in the development stage are directed to the guidance
provided in CICA Accounting Guidelines AcG-11 Enterprises in the
Development Stage that states “enterprises in the development
Stage are encouraged to disclose in the income statement and in the
cash flow statement cumulative balances from the inception of the
development stage.”
Issues that have been involved in a reverse take-over should refer
to the guidance found in BCIN #52-701 (previously NIN #91/21) with
respect to such transactions including the requirement for disclosure
of supplementary information regarding the legal parent’s prior
financial operations.
SCHEDULE B. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
The supplementary information set out below must be provided
when not included in Schedule A.
1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs
Provide a breakdown of amounts presented in the financial
statements for the following: deferred or expensed exploration,
expensed research, deferred or expensed development, cost of
sales, marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses,
and any other material expenses reported in the income
statement and any other material deferred costs presented in the
balance sheet.

The breakdown shouid separately present, at a minimum, each
component that comprises 20% or more of the total amount for a
material classification presented on the face of the financiai

- statements. All other components of a material classification may
. be grouped together under the heading “miscellaneous’ or "other’

in the cost breakdcwn; thé tota! for "miscellaneous” should not
exceed 30% of the total for a material classification.
Breakdowns are required for the year-to-date period only
Breakdowns are not required for comparative periods.

Issuers in the development stage are raminded that Section
3(9)(b) of the BC Securities Commission's Rules requires a
schedule or note to the financial statements containing an
analysis of each of exploration, research, development and
administration costs, whether expensed or deferred and if the
issuer ig a natural resource issuer, that analysis-for each material
property. Because the analysis required by Rule 3(3)(b) must be

" included in the financial statements, the information dcas not
- have to be repeated in Schedule B. Consistent with CICA,

Accounting Guidelines AcG-1 1, staff considers an issuer to be in
the development stage when'it is devoting substantially ali of its
operations have not commenced. Further, in staff's view, the lack
of significant revenues for the past two years normally indicates
that an issuer is in the development stags. :

. Related party transactions )
"Provide disclosure of all related party transactions as specified in

Section 3840 of the CICA Handbook. :

Summary of securities issued and options granted during the

period .

Provide the following information for the year-to-date period:

(a) summary of securities issued during the period, including
date of issue, type of security (common shares, convertible
gebentures, etc.), type of issue (private placement, public
offering, exercise of warrants, etc.) number, price, total
proceeds, type of consideration (cash, property, etc.) and
commission paid, and

(b) summary of options granted during the period, including
date, number, name of optionee for those options granted to
insiders, generic description of other optionees (e.g.
employees",) exercise price and expiry date.

Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period

Provide the following information as at the end of the reporting

period:

(a) description of authorized share capital including number of
shares for each class, dividend rates on preferred shares
and whether or not cumulative, redemption and conversion
and

(b) number and recorded value for shares issued and
outstanding

(c) description of options, warrants and convertible securities
outstanding, including number or amount, exercise or
conversion price and expiry date, and any recorded value,
and

(d) number of shares in each class of shares subject to escrow
or pooling agreements.

List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this

report is signed and filed.

FINST-OULE (Reverse) Rev..000/12719




SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1. General Instructions

(a) Management discussion and analysis provides management
with the opportunity to discuss an issuer's business, current
financial results, position and future prospects.

(b) Focus the discussion on material information, including liquidity,
capital resources, known trends, commitments, events, risks
or uncertainties, that is reasonably expected to have a
material effect on the issuer.

(c) For an issuer with active ongoing operaticns the discussion
should be substantive (e.g. generally two to four pages in
length); for an issuer with limited operations the discussion
may not be as extensive (e.g. one page).

(d) The discussion must be factual, balanced and non-promotional.

(e) Where the discussion relates to a mineral project, as defined in
National instrument 43-1 01 "Standards of Disclosure for
Mineral Projects,’ the disclosure must comply with NI 43-101.

2. Description of Business

Provide a brief description of the issuer's business. Where an

issuer is inactive and has no business, disclose these facts

together with a description of any plans to reactivate and the
business the issuer intends to pursue.
3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

Provide a meaningful discussion and analysis of the issuer's

operations for the current year-to-date period presented in the

financial statements. Discuss the issuer's financial condition as
at the date of the most recent balance sheet presentsd in the
financial statements.

The following is a list of items that shouid be addressed in

management's discussion and analysis of the issuer's operations

and financial condition. This is not intended to be an exhaustive
list of the relevant items.

(a) expenditures included in the analysis of expenses and defaired -

costs required under Securities Rule 3(9)(b) and Schedule B;
(b) acquisition or abandonment of resource properties material to

the issuer including material terms of any acquisition or disposition;

(c) acquisition or disposition of other material capital assets
including material terms of the acquisition, or disposition;

(d) material write-off or write-down of assets;

(e) transactions with related parties, disclosed in Schedule B or the
notes to the financial statements; ’

(f) material contracts or commitments;

(g) material variances between the issuer's financial results and
information previously disclosed by the issuer, (for example if
the issuer does not achieve revenue and profit estimates
previously released, discuss this fact and the reasons for the
variance);

(h) material terms of any existing third party investor refations
arrangements or contracts including:

i. the name of the person;
ii. the amount paid during the reporting period; and
iii. the services provided during the reporting period;

(i} legal proceedings;

(j) contingent liabilities;

(k) default under debt or other contractual obligations;

() abreach of corporate, securities or other laws, or of an
issuer's listing agreement with the Canadian Venture
exchange including the nature of the breach, potential
ramifications and what is being done to remedy it;

{m) regulatory approval requirements for a significant transaction
including whether the issuer has obtained the required
approval or has applied for the approval;

(n) management changes; or

(o) special resolutions passed by shareholders.

4. Subsequent Events

Discuss any significant events and transactions that occurred

during the time from the date of the financial statements up to the
date that this report is certified by the issuer.
5. Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones

(a) In a tabular format, compare any previously disclosed principal
purposes from a financing to actual expenditures made during
the reporting period.

(b) Explain any material variances and the impact, if any, on the
issuer's ability to achieve previously disclosed objectives and

L inilestones.
6. Liquidity and Solvency

Discuss the issuer's working capital position and its ability to meet

its ongoing obligations as they become due.

How to File Under National instrument 13-101 - System for

~ Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR)

- B8C Form 51 -901 F Quarterly and Year End Reports are filed under
Category of Filing: Continuous Disclosure and Filing Type: Interim
Financial Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule A
(Financial Statements) is filed under Document Type: Interim Financial
Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule B
(Supplementary information) and Schedule C (Management
Discussion) are f lled under Document Type: BC Form 51 -901 F
(previously Document Type Form 61 (BC)).

Meeting the Form Requirements

BC Form 51 -901 F consists of three parts: Instructions to schedules A,

B and C, issuer details and a certificate. To comply with National

Instrument 13-1 01 it is not necessary to reproduce the instructions that

are set out in BC Form 51 -901 F. A cover page to the schedules titled

BC Form 51 -901 F that includes the issuer details and certificate is all

that is required to meet the BC Form 51 -901 F requirements. The form
of certificate should be amended so as to refer to one or two of the
three schedules required to complete the report.

ISSUER DETAILS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DATE OF REPORT
AME OF ISSUE YY/MMWDD

International Tower Hill Mines Ltd. November 30, 2001 02/01/03

ISSUER'S ADDRESS

837 West Hastings Street, Suite 507

CITY/PROVINCE POSTAL CODE ISSUER FAX NO. ISSUER TELEPHONE NO.

Vancouver, BC V6C 3N6 (604) 685-5777 (604) 685-1017

CONTACT PERSON CONTACT'S POSITION CONTACT TELEPHONE NO.

Anton (Tony) J. Drescher Director (604) 685-1017

CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS WEB SITE ADDRESS

mail@harbourpacific.com www.towerhillmines.com

CERTIFICATE

The three schedules required to complete this Quarterly Report are attached and the disclosure contained therein has been approved by the board of Directors. A

copy of this Quarterly Report wiil be provided to any shareholder who
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International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in Canadian doilars)
(Prepared by Management)
(Unaudited)

Six Months Year Ended
November 30, 2001 May 31, 2001
Assets
Current ,
Cash and cash equivalents $ 337,227 § 366,527
Guaranteed investment certificate - 104,072
Marketable securities (note 3) 37,520 37,520
Accounts receivable 5,410 6,937
Prepaid expenses 754 2,266
380,911 517,322
Term deposit (note 4a) 2,500 2,500
Mineral properties (note 4) 1,103,778 1,043,727
$ 1487189 $ 1,563,549
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 10,256 § 11,855
Share Capital and Deficit
Share capital (note 5) 3,515,664 3,515,664
Deficit (2,038,731) (1,963,970)
1,476,933 1,551,694
$ 1487189 § 1,563,549

Commitments (note 4)

Approved by the Directors:

“Anton J. Drescher’ Director

“Norm J. Bonin” Director




Intermaclonial 1owWer i villies Lid.

Consolidated Statement of Deficit
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
(Prepared by Management)

outstanding

(Unaudited)
| For the three months ended For the six months ended
November 30, November 30, November 30, November 30
2001 2000 2001 2000
Income
interest 5,701 5,784 10,250 12,17¢
Expenses
Management fees 7,500 7,500 15,000 15,00(
Office and miscellaneous 2,032 2,044 3,226 2,15%
Professional fees 2,380 12,734 41,359 15,19¢
Rent 1,800 1,800 3,600 3,60(
Stock exchange and filing fees - . - 9,496 2,466 19,104 3,211
Transfer agent fees 1,042 1,116 1,670 2,081
Travel and promotion 468 1,195 962 1,52¢
24,718 28,855 85,011 42.77:
Loss from operations (19,017) (19,071) (74,761) (30,599
Other items
‘ Gain on sale of marketable seciurities Ce 6,478 - 18,62%
(Loss) Income for the period {19,017) (12,593) (74,761) (11,976,
Deficit, beginning of period (2,019,714) (1,878,000) (1,963,970) (1,878,617
Deficit, end of period $ (2,038,731) $ (1,890,593) $ (2,038,731) $ (1,890,593
Income (loss) per share (note 6) " (0.002) - (0.001) - (0.008) (0.001)
Weighted average number of shares 8,882,411 7,377,828 8,882,411 7,377,82¢




International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
(Prepared by Management)

{Unaudited) ‘ '

For the three months ended

For the six months ended

- November 30, November 30, November 30, November 30,
: 2001 2000 2001 2000
Cash provided by (used for)
Operating activities |
(Loss)Iincome for the period $ (19,017) $(12,593). § . (74.761) - $(11,976
Add (deduct) items not affecting cash ' '
Gain on sale of marketable securities : (6:478) : (18,623
(19,017) (19,071\)' (74,761) (30,599
Changes in non-cash items:
Accounts receivable . 5,952 (12,800) 1,527 (8,438
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,134 30,653 (1,599) - 25,51t
Prepaid expenses 752 738 1,612 1,48.
Due to directors (3,000) - -
(13,179) (480) (73,321) (12,038
- Financing activity : .
Shares issued forcash - 145,000 - 145,001
Shares Subscribe - (90,000) -
- 55,000 - 145,00
'In\“/ésting. activities o
Proceeds of disposition of marketable - 37,168 - 65,48
securities _ o o .
Mineral property exploration costs (18,767) (60,454) ~ (60,051) (74,473
Proceeds on sale of guaranteed investment - - 104,072
(18,767) (23,286) 44,021 (8,990
(Decrease)increase in cash and cash (31,946) 31,234 (29,300) 123,97
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 369,173 400,397 366,527 307,65
period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 337227 $ 431631  $ 337,227

$ 43163




international tower Hill NVilnes Lia.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)

November 30, 2001

1.

Nature of Operations

The Company is in the business of acquiring, exploring and evaluating mineral properties, and either
joint venturing or developing these properties further or disposing of them when the evaluation is
completed. At November 30, 2001, the Company was in the exploration stage and had interests in
properties in British Columbia, Alberta and Quebec, Canada.

The recoverability of amounts shown as mineral properties and deferred exploration costs is dependent
upon the existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary
financing to complete their development, and future profitable production or disposition thereof.

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral properties in which it has an interest, in
accordance with industry standards for the current stage of exploration of such properties, these
procedures do not guarantee the Company’s title. Property title may be subject to unregistered prior
agreements and non-compliance with regulatory requirements.

Significant Accounting Pelicies
The following is a sumrhary of the significant accounting policies used by management in the preparation

of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

- a) Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.
and its wholly owned subsidiary 813034 Alberta Ltd (“813034"), an Alberta corporation. 813034 was
incorporated during 1999 and has no operations.

b) Marketable securities
Marketable securities are valued at the lower of cost or market.
¢) Mineral properties

Mineral properties cunsist of exploration arid mining concessions, options and contracts. Acquisition
and leasehold costs and exploration costs are capitalized and deferred until such time as the
property is put into production or the properties are disposed of either through sale or abandonment.
if put into production, the costs of acquisition and exploration will be written off over the life of the
property, based on estimated economic reserves. Proceeds received from the sale of any interest in
a property will first be credited against the carrying value of the property, with any excess included in
operations for the period. If a property is abandoned, the property and deferred exploration costs will
be written off to operations.

d) Income (loss) per share

Income (loss) per share amounts have been calculated based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year. Fully diluted per share information is calculated as if all
warrants outstanding at year end were converted at the later of the beginning of the year or the date
of issuance.




International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

{Unauditea)

November 30, 2001

g) Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

e)

Cash equivalents

The company consuders caah equwalerts to consist of hlghly liquid lnvestment with a remaining
maturity of three months or less when purchased: :

f) Foreign currency translatlon "
Monetary assets and liabilities resulttng from-foreign currency transactlons are translated into
Canadian dollars using the year end conversion rates Acquusmon and exploratlon costs have been
translated at the dates of occurr ence

g) Financial instruments
The fair value of cash, guaranteed investment certificates, term deposits, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and amounts due to directors approximate their.carrying
value due to the relatively short periods to maturity of these financial instruments.

h) Estimates -
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the regorted amount of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expendxtures durmg the reportmg penod Actual results could
differ from those reported.

i) Income tax
Income taxes are accounted for using the future incom‘e‘téx method. Tax benefits have not been
recorded due to uncertainty regarding their utilization.

j) Joint venture accounting
Where the company’s -.exploration and development activities are conducted with others, the
acccunts reflect only the company’s proportlonate interest in such activities.

3 Marketable Securltues
November 30, May 31,
2001 2001
Marum Resources Inc. (market value $46,900) $ 37520 $ 37,520

At November 30, the Company held 469,000 shares of Marum Resources Inc. (2000 — 469,000 shares;
market vaiue $37,520), acquired as part of the investment in the Ch'nchaga joint venture, with an
historical cost of $51, 590




Hiernauonal 1ower fill viines «1a.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)

November 30, 2001

4. Mineral P'ropertie~s“
Accumulated costs in respect of mineral claims owned, leased or under option, consist of the following:
Siwash Chinchaga Torngat November 30, May 31,
Silver - Project Properties 2001 2001
Leases Total Total
Acquisition costs N ‘
Beginning baiance $ 80,0000 - $ 21,050 $ 201,950 $ 178,600
Lease costs 12,500 - 5,800 18,300 23,350
Ending baiance 192500 - - 27 750 220,250 201,950
Deferred exploration
Beginning balance 713,182 50,000 78,595 841,777 739,209
Drilling 2749¢ . . . l‘ - 27,499 40,000
Mapping and sampling 3,378 - - 3,378 11,445
Surveying 10,874 - - 10.874 51,123
Ending balance 754,933 50,000 78,595 833,528 841,777
- Total deferred costs $ 947,433 3 50,060 $‘ 906,345 . $ 1,103,778  $1,043,727

a) Siwash Siiver Leases

i)

On October 27, 1‘987, the Company was granted an option to acquire a 100% interest in certain mineral
ciaims situated in the Similkameen Mining Division of British Columbia.

“The agreement required total consideration of $160,0_00 to be paid as follows:

$ 6,000 upon closing {paid);

$ 4,000 on_or before Aprii 3, 1988 (pald)

$ 10,000 on or before October 3, 1988 (paid);

$ 10,000 on or before October 3, 1989 (paid); and

$ 10,000 each subsequent year thereafter until October 3, 2002

On March 18,1 99%, an 'amendrhent was made to the agreement dated October 27, 1987 to change the
payments to be made to the optionor. The amended payments are as follows:

$10,000 on or before October 3, 1990 (paid)
$12,500 each subsequent year thereafter until October 3, 2002,
(October 3, 2000 and prior payments were made)

On November 17, 1987, the Company paid $1,000 to Brenda Mines Ltd. (Brenda) to obtain certain
information on this property and gave Brenda the option to provide production financing shouid the
property come into production in the future. The Company has granted Brenda an option to acquire a
51% interest in the property for 90 days following a positive production recommendation by an
independent consulting firm. Terms of the option include reimbursing all exploration and feasibility study
expenditures incurred to that date up to a total of $2 million and providing all capital required to bring the
property into production. In the event that the property generates a positive cash flow, Brenda will retain
80% of profits until all development capital plus interest has been repaid, at which time proceeds will be
distributed based on interest in the project.

10 .



International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
{(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)

November 30, 2001

-4, Mineral Properties (cont'd)

b)

¢

If the Company decides tc sell any or all of its interest in the property to a third party, it must first offer that
interest to Brenda on the same terms and Brenda shall have 60 days to advise the company of its
decision.

The Company has pledged a $2,500 term deposit as reclamation security as requlred by the Province of
British Columbia.

ii) On September 18, 1996, the Company acquired a 100% interest in certain mineral claims situated
_adiacent to the Similkameen Mining Division of British Columbia. The purchase price.of the claims was
$15,000 (paid) and upon commencement of production of valuable minerals from the claims, the vendor

will receive a royalty of 1% of net smelter returns.

During May 2001 and continuing through November 2001 the Company commenced a drilling program
on the leases. Total exploration expenses of $60,454 were incurred during this peried. -

Chinchaga Project

On January 29, 1999 the company entered a joint venture agreement with Marum Resources Inc. to explore
for diamonds in the Chinchaga area of northern Alberta, Canada.. The company must contribute $300,000 by
way of cash or cash equwalents whereby a maximum contribution of $100,000 can be made through private
placement for shares in Marum:Resources inc. The company will receive 50% interest in Marum s working
interest in the three townships ¢f the Chinchaga area.

The agreement required total consideration of $300,000 tc be paid as follows

-$ 150,000 before June 30, 1999 for first 25% interest
-$ 150,000 (amended) before September 30, 2000 for remaining 25% interest

During 1999 the Company exercised its option to purchase the 1,000,000 private placement units of Marum
Resources Inc. for $100,000 and expended $50,000 for the development of the Chinchaga project. Each
private placement unit contains one common share and one non-transferable share purchase warrant to
purchase one additional common share at a price of $0.12 per share, exercisable for a period of two years
from the date of payment for the units. During fiscal 2000 the Company exercised the 1,000,000 warrants and
purchased 1,000,000 shares of Marum for $120,000. ’

During fiscal 2001 the Company and Marum amended the agreement whereby the Company has now eamed
its 50% interest in the project through the advance of $270,000 as detailed above. At November 30, 2001 no
further activity had transpired and no adjustments to the joint venture contribution have been recorded.

Torngat Property

During November 1999, the Company was granted two (2) exploration permits totailing 108.5 square
kilometers in northermn Quebec, know as the Torngat property. The Company has commenced aerial
exploration and surveying of the kimberlite dike area under an arrangement with four other companies
whereby common costs are shared. As part of the permits, the Quebec government has agreed to reimburse
50% of exploration expenditures up to a maximum of $220,000. The Company has received $26,300 in
reimbursement for expenses from the Quebec government.

11



international iower mill Mines Lia.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)

November 30, 2001

5. Share Capital
Authorized:
20,000,000 common shares without par value
Novemnber 30, 2001 . May 31, 2001
» L Number Number of ‘
Issued of Shares Amount Shares Amount

Bélance, beginning and end 9,012,183 § _3,515,664 90....183 $ 3,515,664
of period

Earnings Per Share

Fully diluted earnings per share has not been disclosed in '2000 as the results are not materially dilutive.
The effect of potentially dilutive securities are not mcludnd in the calculation of fully diluted eamings per
share as the result would be anti-dilutive.

Related Party Transactions

During the’period the company paid $ 15,000 (2000 - $1 5,000) in managemaent fees and $909 (2000 -
$749) in professional fees to a company controlled by an individual who is a director of the company.

Income Taxes

The Company has resource deduction tax pools of approximately $2,275,000 available to offset future
taxable income. :

Differences between Canadlan and United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(HGAAP")

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP in Canada, which differed in some
respects from GAAP in the United States. The materiai differences between Canadian and United
States GAAP, in respect of these financial statements, are as follows:




International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Management)

{Unaudited) '

November 30, 2001

a) Mineral property exploration and development

Under United States GAAP, all mineral exploration and development property expenditures are
expensed in the year incurred in an exploration stage company until there is substantial evidence
that a commercial body of ore has been focated. Canadian GAAP allows resource exploration and
development property expenditures to be deferred during this process. The effect on the
Company’s financial statements is summarized below: Co

" Six months " Sixmonths
November 30, November 30,
2001 2066

Consolidated statement of
operations and deficit
Income (loss) for the period under e ‘
Canadian GAAP - § (74,761) $(11,976)
Write off of exploration expenses - -
Mineral property exploration and SR
development expenditures (60,051) (74,473)

United States GAAP ' '8 (134,812) $ (86,449)

Gain (loss) per share — US GAAP $ (0.01) § (0.01)

Consolidated balance sheet

Assets

Mineral Properties - L B
Canadian GAAP $ 1,103,778 $ 992,282
Resource property expenditures

(cumulative) (889,328) (812,282) -
United States GAAP _$ 214450 $ 180,000
Deficit

Canadian GAAP $(2,038,731)  $(1,890,593)

Resource property expenditures

(cumulative) (889,328) (812,282)
United States GAAP $(2,928,059)  $(2,702,875)

13




mnernatondl sower il wvines Lia.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian, cﬂo!lars)

(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited) :

November 30, 2001

9. - Differences between Canadian c.nd dmted States Generally Accepted Accourting Principlas
' (‘GAAP”) continued '

' D) Marketabie Securities

Under United States GAAP, the Company would classify the marketabie securities as “Securities
available for resale”. The carrying value on the balance sheet at November 30, 2001 would remain
at $37,520 (2000 -$95,59G) and the unrealized gain (loss) would be posted ta sharehalder’s equity
$Nii (2000 - $N|i) There would be no impact on the consolidated siatement of operations in 2001
and 2000. -

c) Income Taxes

Linder United States GAAP, the Company would have lnmanly recorded an income tax asset forthe
benefit of the resource deduction pools and losses carried forward This asset would have been
ieduced to $nil by a valJatcon allowance ¥ .

14



m British Columbia Securities Commission

BCSC

QUARTERLY AND YEAR END REPORT
BC FORM 51 -901 F
(previously Form 61)

Freedom of Information and Protaction of Privacy Act The persconalinformation requesied. on this form is collected under the authority of and used for
the purpose of administering the Securities Act. C) questions about the collection or use of this information can be directed to the Supervisor, Financial
Reporting (604-899-6729), PO Box 10142, Pacific Centre, 701 West Georgia Street, Vancouver BC V7Y 1L2. Toll Free in British Columbia 1-800-373-6393

INSTRUCTIONS
This report must be filed by the Exchange Issuers within 60 days of the
end of their first, second and third quarters and within 140
days of their year end. “Exchange issuer” means an issuer whose
securities are listed and posted for trading on the Canadian Venture
Exchange and are not listed and posted on any other axchange or
quoted on'a trading or quotation system in Canada. Three
schedules must be attached to this report as follows;
SCHEDULE A: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles are required as follows:
For the first, second and third financial quarters:
Interim financial statements prepared in accordance with section
1751 of the CICA Handbook, including the.following: balance. sheet
income statement, statement of retained eamings, cash ﬂow
statement, and notes to the financial statements. -~ -~
The periods required to be presented, consistent with CICA
Handbook Section 1751 are as follows:
« a balance sheet as of the end of the current interim period and
a comparative balance sheet as of the end of the lmmed;ately
preceding fiscal year
+ a statement of retained eamings cumulatively for the current fiscal
year-to-date, with a comparative statement for the comparable
year-to-date period of the immediately preceding fiscal year; and
+ Income statements and cash flow statements for the current
interim period and cumulatively for the current fiscal year-to-date,
with comparative statements for the comparable interim periods
(current and year-to-date) of the immediately preceding fiscal
year
For the financial year end:
Annual audited financial statements prepared on a comparative
basis.
Exchange Issuers with a fiscal year less than or greater than 12
Months should refer to National Policy No. 51 Chariges in Ending
Date of a Financial Year and in Reporting Status for guidance.
Issuers in the development stage are directed to the guidance
provided in CICA Accounting Guidelines AcG-11 Enterprises in the
Development Stage that states “enterprises in the development
Stage are encouraged to disclose in the income statement and in the
cash flow statement cumulative balances from the inception of the
development stage.”
Issues that have been involved in a reverse take-over should refer
to the guidance found in BCIN #52-701 (previously NIN #91/21) with
respect to such transactions including the requirement for disclosure
of supplementary information regarding the legal parent's prior
financial operations.
SCHEDULE B. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
The supplementary information set out below must be provided
when not inciuded in Schedule A.
1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs
Provide a breakdown of amounts presented in the financial
statements for the following: deferred or expensed exploration,
expensed research, deferred or expensed development, cost of
sales, marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses,
and any other material expenses reported in the income
statement and any other material deferred costs presented in the
balance sheet.

The breakdown should separately present, at a minimum, each
component that comprises 20% or more of the total amount for a
material classification presented on the face of the financial
statements. All other components of a material classification may

" be grouped together under the heading "miscellaneous’ or "other’
in the cost breakdown; the total for “miscellaneous” should not
exceed 30% of the total for a2 material classification.

Breakdowns are required for the year-to-date period only

Breakdowns are not required for.comparative periods.

Issuers in the development stage are reminded that Section

3(9)(b) of the BC Securities Commission's Rules requires a

schedule or note to the financial staternents containing an

analysis of each of exploration, research, development and
administration costs, whether expensed or deferred and if the
issuer is a natural resource issuer, that analysis for each material
property. Because the analysis required by Rule 3(8)(b) must be
included in the financial statements, the information does not
have to be repeated in Scheduie B. Consistent with CICA

Accounting Guidelines AcG-1 1, staff considers an issuer to be in

the development stage when it is devoting substantially al) of its

operations have not commenced. Further, in staff's view, the lack
of significant revenues for the past two years normally indicates
that an issuer is in the development stage.

2. Related party transactions
Provide disclosure of all related party transactions as specified in
Section 3840 of the CICA Handbook.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the
period
Provide the following information for the year-to-date period:

(a) summary of securities issued during the period, including
date of Issue, type of security (common shares, convertible
debentures, etc.), type of issue (private placement, public
offering, exercise of warrants, etc.) number, price, total
proceeds, type of consideration (cash, property, etc.) and
commission paid, and

(b) summary of options granted during the period, including
date, number, name of optionee for those options granted to
insiders, generic description of other optionees (e.g.
employees",) exercise price and expiry date.

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period
Provide the following information as at the end of the reporting
period:

(a) description of authorized share capital including number of
shares for each class, dividend rates on preferred shares
and whether or not cumulative, redemption and conversion
and

(b) number and recorded value for shares issued and
outstanding

(c) description of options, warrants and convertible securities
outstanding, including number or amount, exercise or
conversion price and expiry date, and any recorded value,
and

(d) number of shares in each class of shares subject to escrow
or pooling agreements.

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this
report is signed and filed.

FINSL-90LF(Reverac) Rev.2000/12/19




SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. General Instructions

(a) Management discussion and analysis provides management
with the opportunity to discuss an issuer's business, current
financial results, position and future prospects.

(b) Focus the discussion on material information, including liquidity,
capital resources, known trends, commitments, events, risks
or uncertainties, that is reasonably expected to have a
material effect on the issuer.

(c) For an issuer with active ongoing operations the discussion
should be substantive (e.g. generally two to four pages in
length); for an issuer with limited operations the discussion
may not be as extensive (e.g. one page).

(d) The discussion must be factual, balanced and non-promotional.

(e) Where the discussion relates to a mineral project, as defined in
National Instrument 43-1 01 "Standards of Disclosure for
Mineral Projects,’ the disclosure must comply with NI 43-101.

Description of Business

Provide a brief description of the issuer's business. Where zn

issuer is inactive and has no business, disclose these facts

together with a description of any plans to reactivate and the
business the issuer intends to pursue.

3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition
Provide a meaningful discussion and analysis of the issuer's
operations for the current year-to-date period presented in the
financial statements. Discuss the issuer's financial condition as
at the date of the most recent balance sheet presented in the
financial statements.

The following is a list of items that should be addressed in

management's discussion and analysis of the issuer's operations

and financial condition. This is not intended to be an exhaustive
list of the relevant items.

(a) expenditures included in the analysis of expenses and deferred
costs required under Securities Rule 3(8)(b) and Schedule B;

(b) acquisifion or abandonment of resource properties material to
the issuer including material terms of any acquisition or disposition;

(c) acquisition or disposition of other material capital assets
including material terms of the acquisition, or disposition;

(d) material write-off or write-down of assets;

(e) transactions with related parties, disclosed in Schedule B or the
notes to the financial statements;

() material contracts or commitments;

(g9) material variances between the issuer’s financial results and .
information previously disclosed by the issuer, (for example if
the issuer does not achieve revenue and profit estimates
previously refeased, discuss this fact and the reasons for the
variance);

(h) material terms of any existing third party investor relations
arrangements or contracts including:

i. the name of the person;

ii. the amount paid during the reporting period; and

iii. the services provided during the reporting period;

legal proceedings;

contingent liabilities;

default under debt or other contractual obligations;

a breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or of an

issuer's listing agreement with the Canadian Venture

exchange including the nature of the breach, potential

ramifications and what is being done to remedy it;

regulatory approval requirements for a significant transaction

including whether the issuer has obtained the required

approval or has applied for the approval;

(n) management changes; or
(o) special resolutions passed by shareholders.
4. Subsequent Events
" Discuss any significant events and transactions that occurred
"during the time from the date of the financial statements up to the
date that this report is certified by the issuer.

5. Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones

(a) In a tabular format, compare any previously disclosed principal
purposes from a financing to actual expenditures made during
the reporting period.

(b) Explain any material variances and the impact, if any, on the
issuer’s ability to achieve previously disclosed abjectives and
milestones.

Liquidity and Solvency

Discuss the issuer's working capital position and its ability to meet

its ongoing obligations as they become due.

How to File Under National Instrument 13-101 - System for

Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR)

BC Form 51 -901 F Quarterly and Year End Reports are filed under

Category of Filing: Continuous Disclosure and Filing Type: Interim

Financial Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule A

(Financial Staternents) is filed under Document Type: Interim Financial

Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule B

(Suprlementary information) and Schedule C (Management

Discussicn) are f tled under Document Type: BC Form 51 -901 F

{previousiy Document Type Form 61 (BC})).

Meeting the Form Requirements

BC Form 51 -901 F consists of three parts: Instructions to schedules A,

B and C, issuer details and a certificate. To comply with National

Instrument §3-1 01 it is not necessary to reproduce the instructions that

are set out in BC Form 51 -901 F. A cover page to the schedules titled

BC Form 51 -901 F that includes the issuer details and certificate is all

that is required to maet the BC Form 51 -901 F requirements. The form

of certificate sheuld be amended so as to refer to one or two of the
three schedules required to compiete the report.

0

(k)
®

(m)

ISSUER DETAILS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DATE OF REPORT
AME OF ISSUER YY/MMDD

International Tower Hill Mines Ltd. November 30, 2001 02/01/03

ISSUER'S ADDRESS

837 West Hastings Street, Suite 507 .

CITY/PROVINCE POSTAL CODE ISSUER FAX NO. ISSUER TELEPHONE NO.

Vancouver, BC V6C 3NG (604) 685-5777 (604) 685-1017

CONTACT PERSON CONTACT'S POSITION CONTACT TELEPHONE NO.

Anton (Tony) J. Drescher Director (604) 685-1017

CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS
mail@harbourpacific.com

WEB SITE ADDRESS
www.towerhillmines.com

CERTIFICATE

The three schedules required to complete this Quarterly Report are attached and the disclosure contained therein has been approved by the board of Directors.

A copy of this Quarterly Report will be provided to any shareholder who requests it.

DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED
Y Y|{M M[D D
» “Anton (Tony) J. Drescher”’ Anton (Tony) J. Drescher 0 | 210 ' 110 I 3
DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED
Y Y|M M|D D
» “Narman J. Bonin" Norman J. Bonin 0 | 20 | 1/0 ‘ 3
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[y

INTERNATIONAL TOWER HILL MINES LTD |
FORM 51-901F L
for the s_ix months ended November 30, 2001 -

A Deferred Exploration Expenses
- See Note 4 — Mineral Properties

B. Aggregate amount of non-arms’s length transactions

- See Note 7 - Related Party Transactions

A. | Securities issued dixring the period under review
- See Note 5 -- Share Capital

B. Options granfed dunng the period under review
- None . :

“A.  Share capital at end of quarter

Authorized: 20,000,000 common shares with no par value
" Issued: 9,012,183 common shares ' :

B. Options and warrants outstanding at end of quarter
Options - none .
Warrants - none” -

List of officers and directors as at Nove_mber 30, 2001 3

Officers: Anton J. Drescher — President; Donna Moroney — Secretary .

Directors: Anton J. Drescher; Norman J. Bonin; Roland Perkins




INTERNATIONAL TOWER HILL MINES LTD.
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for the six months ended November 30, 2001

Schedule C: Management Discussion

1..  NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Cdmpany is in the business of acquiﬁing, exploring and evaluating mineral properties, and
either joint venturing or developing these properties further or disposing of them when the
evaluation is completed. At November 30, 2001, the Company was in the exploration stage
and had interests in properties in British Columbia, Alberta and Quebec, Canada.

2.- - EQUITY FINANCING

No stock options wérc: granted nor exercised duﬁﬁg the period.

3. EXPLORATION/PROPERTY UPDATE

. a)  Exploration Permits granted — Tt orngat exp'lora"tion‘ area — Northern Quebec

‘  During November 1999, the Company acquired a 100% interest in two Quebec Mineral
Exploration Permits in the Torngat diamond exploration area of Northern Quebec for a total
consideration of $11,100. Additional lease maintenance costs of $16,650 were paid to date.

Permit 1467 covers 58 square kms. 'Pé’rmit 1487 covers 50.5 square kms. Both permits adjoin
the kimberlite dyke-bearing property held by Twin Gold Corporation (TWGT).

' The Company completed its 2000 Torngat diamond exploration program in northern Quebec.
Two helicopter-supported mapping and sampling programs were carried out in August and
September. The objective of the 2000 Torngat exploration program was to catalogue
kimberlite dykes that were visible from the air and to take samples for geochemical analysis.
One large 5-metre wide dyke was discovered. Its linear extent remains unknown. Geochemical
analysis indicates that the kimberlite originated in the diamond stability field and is a potential
diamond host. One sample was submitted for caustic dissolution and no diamonds were
recovered. The Company incurred exploration costs and mineral lease costs totalling $5,800
during the six-month period ended November 30, 2001. The Company intends to carry out a
follow-up sampling and mapping progrant in mid-2002. Iis objectives will be to take

. significantly larger samples from various locations on the 5-metre wide dyke and to explore
for additional dykes on the basis of airborne geophysical data.



INTERNATIONAL TOWER HILL MINES LTD.
Form 51 — Page 3
for the six months ended November 30, 2001

b) Chinchaga Diamond and Metals Project — Northern :Zlberta

During the period, the Company did not incur any exploration' costs with regards to the
Chinchaga Diamond and Metals Project, Northern Alberta. The Company is evaluating the
results of past exploration and is 1mplemenung a land’ management program to comc1de with
the end of the first assessment work cycle :

c) Siwash Creek Project — Similkameen Mining Division of British Columbia

The Company commenced its Spring 2001 diamond drill program on its 100% owned Siwash
Property in south-central British Columbia. The Siwash Property is located in close proximity
to both Brenda Mines Ltd. (copper and molybdenum producnon) and Fairfield Minerals Ltd.
(gold production) mineral projects. The 2001 program has been designed to further delineate
the gold, silver and copper values intersected in the northeastern portion of the property. Drill
results to date indicate a similar style of mineralization as that found at Brenda Mines. In
addition, these drill results “indicate that the gold/silver/copper mineralization extends
approximately 300 meters in a north-south direction and 600 meters in an east-west direction
to a depth of approx1mately 125 meters.. Driiling also indicates that this’ zone is still open to
the west, north, east and depth.

The 2001 dnll program will compose of five drill holes varying from 150 meters to 250
meters, AZ 0° dip varying from —55%10 65° and will be concentrated in the area north and east
of holes 96-3, 97-1 and 97-5. All holes will be drilled in the mineralized granodiorite. For the
_six-month period ended November 30, 2001, the Company incurred total exploration expenses
* of $41,751, which had been 1ncurred and pald The Company also incurred $12 500 on lease

costs.
._Tl:_leCompany will advise further as resu‘_lt's of the program are received.
4. CORPORATE BUSINESS

a) General and Administrative costs for the six months ended November 30, 2001 were
$85,011 (2000: $42,773) representing an increase of $42,238. The majority of the
increase in general and administrative expenses was due to an increase in professional
fees of $26,164 to $41,359 for the fiscal penod ended November 30, 2001 (2000:
$15,195). This increase in professional fees was due to the Company’s costs for listing
on Berlin and Frankfurt Stock Exchanges and completion of the Company’s 20F filing
with the US Securities and Exchange Commission. There was also an increase in Stock
exchange and filing fees of $15,983 to $19,194 for the fiscal period ended November
30,2001(2000:$3,211).This increase was due to filing fees on the Berlin and Frankfurt
Stock Exchanges. Included in the General and Administrative costs are $15,000 (2000:
$15,000) in management fees.
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During the period, the Company paid $909 (2000: $749) in professional fees to a
company controlled by an individual who is an officer of the Company. Interest
income for the period ended November 30, 2001 was $10,250 compared to $12,174 for
the period ended November 30, 2000. The decrease in interest income is a result of the
decrease of interest rates and redemption of guaranteed investment certificate.

b) The Company did not incur any specific expenditures relating to investor relations
activities for the period ended November 30, 2001 and up to the date of this report.
Investor relations activities were conducted in-house by management. :

S. OTHER

The Company’s Form 20F Registration Statement has been filed with the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission and is effective under File No. 0-31096. This
registration satisfies the Exchange Act requirement of full disclosure of all material facts and
allows the Company to trade its securities in the United States within the rules and regulations
of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act.

The Company was approved for listing on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and began trading
October 3, 2001 under the trading symbol “TW9”. This listing is in addition to the Berlin
Stock Exchange — unofficial Regulated Market listing announced in July of this year. Share
quotes can be found at www.comdirect.de or www.berlinerboerse.de/english/aktien/.

The Company’s shares commenced trading on the NASD OTC Bulletin Board under the
trading symbol TWHMF effective October 5, 2001.
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INSTRUCTIONS

This report must be filed by the Exchange Issuers within 60 days of the

end of their first, second and third quarters and within 140

days of their year end. “Exchange issuer” means an issuer whose .

securities are listed and posted for trading on the Canadian Venture

Exchange and are not listed and posted on any other exchange or

quoted on a trading or quotation system in Canada. Three

schedules must be attached to this report as follows:

SCHEDULE A: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles are required as follows:

For the first, second and third financial quarters:

Interim financia! statements prepared in accordance with section

1751 of the CICA Handbook, including the following: balance sheet

income statement, statement of retained eamings, cash flow

statement, and notes to the financial statements.

The periods required to be presented, consistent with CICA -

Handbook Section 1751 are as follows:

+ abalance sheet as of the end of the current mtenm penod and

a comparative balance sheet as of the end of the immediately
preceding fiscal year

» a statement of retained earnings cumulatively for the current fiscal

year-to-date, with a comparative statement for the comparable |
year-to-date period of the immediately preceding fiscal year; and

« income statements and cash flow statements for the current

interim period and curnuiatively for the current fiscal year-to-date,
with comparative statements for the comparable interim periods .
{current and year-to-date) of the immediately preceding fiscal
year

For the financial year end:

Annual audited financial statemenits pregared on a comparative

basis.

Exchange Issuers with a fiscal year less than or greater than 12

Months should refer to National Policy No. 51 Changes in Ending

Date of a Financial Year and in Reporting Status for guidance.

Issuers in the development stage are directed to the guidance

provided in CICA Accounting Guidelines AcG-11 Enterprises in the

Development Stage that states “enterprises in the development

Stage are encouraged to disclose in the income statement and in the

cash flow statement cumulative balances from the inception of the

development stage.” -

Issues that have been involved in a reverse take-over should refer

to the guidance found in BCIN #52-701 (previously NIN #91/21) with

respect to such transactions including the requirement for disclosure
of supplementary information regarding the legal parent’s prior
financial operations.

SCHEDULE B. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The supplementary information set out below must be provided

when not included in Schedule A.

1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs )
Provide a breakdown of amounts presented in the financial
statements for the following: deferred or expensed exploration,
expensed research, deferred or expensed development, cost of
sales, marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses,
and any other material expenses reported in the income
statement and any other material deferred costs presented in the
balance sheet.

The breakdown should separately present, at-a minimum, each
component that comprises 20% or more of the total amount for a
material classification presented on the face of the financial
statements. All other components of a material classification may
be grouped together under the heading "miscellaneous' or "other’
in the cost breakdown; the total for "miscellaneous" should not
exceed 30% of the total for a.material classification.
‘Breakdowns ‘are required for the year-to-date period only
Breakdowns are not required for comparative periods.

Issuers in the development stage are reminded that Section
3(9)(b) of the BC Securities Commission's Rules requiras a
schedule or note to the financial statements containing an
analysis of each of exploration, research, development and

" administration costs, whether expensed or deferred and if the

2

issuer is a natural resource issuer, that analysis for each material

_ property. Because the analysis required by Ruie 3(9)(b) must be
" included in the finanicial statements, the information does not

have to be repeated in Schedule B. Consistent with CICA

""Accounting Guidélines AcG-1 1, staff considers an issueér to be in

the development stage when it is devoting substantially al! of its
operations have not commenced. Further, in staff's view, the lack
of significant revenues for the past two years non'nally mdlcates

- that an issuer is in the development stage. -
'Related party transactions
* Provide disclosure of all related party transactions as sgecified in

Section 3849 of the CICA Handbook.

Summary of securities issued and options granted during the

period . - :

Provide the followmg mformation for the year-to-date period:

(a) summary of securities issued during the period, including
date of issue, type of security (common shares, convertible
debentures, etc.}, type of issue (private placement, public
offering, exercise of warrants, etc.) number. price, total
proceeds, type of consideration (cash, property, etc.) and
commission paid, and

(b) summary of options granted during the period, including
date, number, name of optionee for those options granted to
insiders, generic description of other optionees (e.g.
employees"”,) exercise price and expiry date.

Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting pericd

Provide the following information as at the end of the reporting

period:

(a) description of authorized share capital including number of
shares for each class, dividend rates on preferred shares
and whether or not cumulative, redemption and conversion
and

{b) number and recorded value for shares issued and
outstanding

(c) description of options, warrants and convertible securities
outstanding, including number or amount, exercise or
conversion price and expiry date, and any recorded value,
and

(d) number of shares in each class of shares subject to escrow
or pooling agreements.

List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this

report is signed and filed.

FINSI-SOIF (Reverae) Rev,z000/12/19




SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1. General Instructions

(a) Management discussion and analysis provides management
with the opportunity to discuss an issuer's business, curent
financial results, position and future prospects.

(b) Focus the discussion on material information, including liquidity,
capital resources, known trends, commitments, events, risks
or uncertainties, that is reasonably expected to have a
material effect on the issuer.

(c) For an issuer with active ongoing operations the discussion
should be substantive (e.g. generally two to four pages in
length); for an issuer with limited operations the discussion
may not be as extensive (e.g. one page).

(d) The discussion must be factual, balanced and non-promotional.

(e) Where the discussion relates to a mineral project, as defined in
National Instrument 43-1 01 "Standards of Disclosure for
Mineral Projects,’ the disclosure must comply with NI 43-101.

2. Description of Business

Provide a brief description of the issuer's business. Where an

issuer is inactive and has no business, disclose these facts

together with a description of any plans to reactivate and the
business the issuer intends to pursue.
3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

Provide a meaningful discussion and analysis of the issuer's

operations for the current year-to-date period presented in the

financial statements. Discuss the issuer's financial condition as

at the date of the most recent balance sheet presented in the

financial statements.

The following is a list of items that should be addressed in

management's discussion and analysis of the issuer's operations

and financial condition. This is not intended to be an exhaustive

list of the relevant items.

(a) expenditures included in the analysis of expenses and deferred
costs required under Securities Rule 3(9)(b) and Schedule B;

(b) acquisition or abandonment of resource properties material to
the issuer including material terms of any acquisition or disposition;

(c) acquisition or disposition of other material capital assets
including material terms of the acquisition, or disposition;

{d) material write-off or write-down of assets;

(e) transactions with related parties, disclosed in Schedule B or the
notes to the financial statements;

(f) material contracts or commitments;

(9) material variances between the issuer's financial results and
information previously disclosed by the issuer, (for example if
the issuer does not achieve revenue and profit estimates
previously released, discuss this fact and the reasons for the
variance);

(h) material terms of any existing third party investor relations
arrangements or contracts including:

i. the name of the person;

ii. the amount paid during the reporting period; and

iii. the services provided during the reporting period;

legal proceedings;

) contingent liabilities;

default under debt or other contractual obligations;

a breach of corporate, securities or other laws, or of an

issuer's listing agreement with the Canadian Venture

exchange including the nature of the breach, potentiai

ramifications and what is being done to remedy it;

regulatory approval requirements for a significant transaction

including whether the issuer has obtained the required

approval or has applied for the approval,
(n) management changes; or
(o) special resolutions passed by shareholders.

4. Subsequent Events
Discuss any significant events and transactions that occurred
during the time from the date of the financial statements up to the
date that this report is certified by the issuer.

5. Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones
() In a tabular format, compare any previously disclosed principal

purposes from a financing to actua! expenditures made during

the reporting period.

Explain any material variances and the impact, if any, on the

issuer's ability to achieve previously disclosed objectives and

milestones.

6. Liguidity and Solvency
Discuss the issuer's working capital position and its ability to meet
its ongoing obligations as they become due.
How to File Under National Instrument 13-101 - System for
Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR)
BC Form 51 -801 F Quarterly and Year End Reports are filed under
Category of Filing: Continuous Disclosure and Filing Type: Interim
Financial Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule A
(Financial Statements) is filed under Document Type: Interim Financial
Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule B
(Supplementary Information) and Schedule C (Management
Discussion) are f !led under Document Type: BC Form 51 -801 F
(previously Document Type Form 61 (BC)).
Meeting the Form Requirements
BC Form 51 -901 F consists of three parts: Instructions to schedules A,
B and C, issuer details and a certificate. To comply with National
Instrument 13-1 01 it is not necessary to reproduce the instructions that
are set out in BC Form 51 -901 F. A cover page to the schedules titled
BC Form 51 -901 F that includes the issuer details and certificate is all
that is required to meet the BC Form 51 -901 F requirements. The form
of certificate shouid be amended so as to refer to one or two of the
three schedules required to complete the report.

(b)

ISSUER DETAILS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DATE OF REPORT
NAME OF ISSUER YY/MM/DD
International Tower Hill Mines Ltd. November 30, 2001 02/01/03
ISSUER'S ADDRESS

837 West Hastings Street, Suite 507

CITY/PROVINCE POSTAL CODE ISSUER FAX NO. ISSUER TELEPHONE NO.
Vancouver, BC V6C 3N6 (604) 685-5777 (604) 685-1017
CONTACT PERSON CONTACT'S POSITION CONTACT TELEPHONE NO.
Anton (Tony) J. Drescher Director (604) 685-1017
CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS WEB SITE ADDRESS

mail@harbourpacific.com www.towerhillmines.com

CERTIFICATE

The three schedules required to complete this Quarterly Report are attached and the disclosure contained therein has been approved by the board of Directors. A

copy of this Quarterly Report will be provided to any shareholder who requests it.

DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED
_ Y Y|{M M]|D

» “Anton (Tony) J. Drescher” Anton (Tony) J. Drescher 0 l 210 | 110 l 3
DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED

Y Y|M M|[D D

> “Norman J. Bonin” Norman J. Bonin ol2]0]1]0]3

FINSI-SOLF (Reverse] Rev.2000/1/19
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International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)
Six Months Year Ended
November 30, 2001 May 31, 2001
Assets
Current ‘
Cash and cash equivalents _ $ 337227 § 366,527
Guaranteed investment certificate - 104,072
Marketable securities (note 3) 37,520 37,520
Accounts receivable 5,410 6,937
Prepaid expenses 754 2,266
380,911 517,322
Term deposit (note 4a) . 2,500 2,500
Mineral properties (note 4) 1,103,778 1,043,727
$ 1,487,189 § 1,563,549
Liabilities
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3 10,256 $ 11,855
Share Capital and Deficit
Share capital (note 5) 3,615,664 3,515,664
Deficit (2,038,731) (1,963,970)
1,476,933 1,551,694
$ 1,563,549

$ 1,487,189

Commitments (note 4)

Approved by the Directors:

“Anton J. Drescher” Director

“Normm J. Bonin” ' Director




Intermationas ower il vilnes Lia.

Consolidated Statement of Deficit
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)
For the three monfhs ende& For the six months ended
November 30, November 30, November 30, November 30
2001 2000 2001 2000
Income
Interest $ 5,701 8,784 $ 10,250 $ 12,17«
Expenses
Management fees 7,500 7,500 15,000 15,00(
Office and miscellaneous 2,032 2,044 3,226 2,151
Professional fees 2,380 12,734 41,359 15,19¢
Rent 1,800 1,800 3,600 3,60
Stock exchange and filing fees 9,496 2,466 19,194 3,211
Transfer agent fees 1,042 1,116 1,670 2,081
Travel and promotion 468 1,195 962 1,52¢
24,718 28,855 85,011 42,777
Loss from operations (19,017) (19,071) (74,761) (30,599
Otﬁer items
-Gain on sale of marketable securities - - 6,478 - 18,627
(Loss) Income for the period (19,017) (12,593) (74,761) (11,976
Deficit, beginning of period (2,019,714) (1,878,000) (1,963,970) (1,878,617
Deficit, end of period $ (2,038,731) $ (1,890,593) $ (2,038,731) $ (1,890,593
Income (loss) per share (note 6) $ (0.002) - (0.001) § {G.008) (0.001
Weighted average number of shares 8,882,411 7,377,828 8,882,411 7,377,82¢

outstanding




International Tower Hill Mlines Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)
(Prepared by Management)

(Unaudited)
For the three months ended For the six months ended
November 30, November 30, November 30, November 30,
2001 2000 2001 2000
Cash provided by (used for)
Operating activities ‘
(Loss)income for the period $ (19,017) $(12,593) $ . (74,761) $(11,976
Add (dedudt) items not affecting cash |
Gain on sale of marketable securitiés - (6,478) - (18,623
(19,017) (19,071) (74,761) (30,599
Changes in non-cash items:
Accounts receivable . 5,952 (12,800) 1,627 (8,438
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,134 30,653 (1,599) 25,51
Prepaid expenses 752 738 1,512 1,48
Due to directors (3,000) - -
(13,179) (480) (73,321) (12,038
Finéhcing activity
Shares issued for cash - 145,000 - 145,00!
.- Shares Subscribe - {90,000) -
- 55,000 - 145,001
Investing activities “
Proceeds of disposition of marketable - 37,168 - - 65,48
securities , L o . o
Mineral property exploration costs (18,767) - (60,454) (60,051) (74,473
Proceeds on sale of guaranteed investment - - 104,072
(18,767) (23,286) 44,021 (8,990
(Decrease)increase in cash and cash (31,946) 31,234 (29,300) 123,97
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of 369,173 400,397 366,527 307,65
period :
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $§ 337,227 $§ 431631 § 337,227

$ 431,63
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in Canadian dollars)

(Prepared by Managemenit)

(Unaudited)

November 30, 2001

1.

Nature of Operations

The Company is in the business of acquiring, exploring and evaluating mineral properties, and either
joint venturing or developing these properties further or disposing of them when the evaluation is
completed. At November 30, 2001, the Company was in the exploration stage and had interests in
properties in British Columbia, Alherta and Quebec, Canada.

The recoverability of amounts shown as mineral properties and deferred exploration costs is dependent
upon the existence of economically recoverable reserves, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary
financing to complete their development, and future profitahle production or disposition thereof.

Although the Company has taken steps to verify title to mineral nroperties in which it has an interest, in
accordance with industry standards for the current stage of exploration of such properties, these
pracedures do not guarantee the Company’s titie. Property title may be subject to unregistered prior
agreements and non-compliance with regulatory requirements.

‘ Significant‘Accounting Policies

The following is a sumhﬁary of the éigniﬁcant accbunting policiés‘used by management in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

a) Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.
and its wholly owned subsidiary 813034 Alberta Ltd {“813034"), an Alberta corporation. 813034 was
incorporated during 1999 and has no operations.

b) Marketable securities
Marketable securities are valued at the lower of cost or market.
c) Mineral properties

Mineral properties consist of explcration and mining concessions, options and contracts. Acquisition
and leasehcid costs and exploration costs are capitalized and deferred until such time as the
property is put into production or the properties are disposed of either through sale or abandonment.
If put into production, the costs of acquisition and exploration will be writien off over the life of the
property, based on estimated economic reserves. Proceeds received from the sale of any interest in
a property will first be credited against the carrying value of the property, with any excess included in
operations for the period. If a property is abandoned, the property and deferred exploration costs will
be written off to operations.

d) Income (loss) per share

-Income {loss) per share amounts have been calculated based on the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the year. Fully diluted per share information is calculated as if all
warrants outstanding at year end were converted at the later of the beginning of the year or the date
of issuance.




International Tower Hill Mines Ltd.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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g)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)

e)

g)

h)

)

Cash equivalents -

The company considers cash equrvalents to consrst of highly Irqurd investments with a remaining
maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Foreign currency transiation

Monetary assets and liabilities resuiting from foreign currency transactions are translated into
Canadian dollars using the year end conversron rates Acquisition and exploratron costs have been
translated at the dates of occurrence

Financial mstruments

The fair value of cash, guaranteed mvestment certificates, term deposits, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and amounts due to directors approximate their carrying

~value due to the relatively short periods to maturity of these financial instruments.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expendrtures durrng the repoiting penod Actual results could
differ from those reported. :

Income tax

Income taxes are accounted for using the future income tax method. Tax benefits have not been
recorded due to uncertainty regarding their utilization.

Joint venture accounting

Where the compary’s exploration.and development activities are conducted with others, the
accounts reflect snly the company’s proportionate interest in such activities.

Marketable Securities

November 30, May 31,
2001 2001

Marum Resources Inc. (market value $46,900) $ 37,520 $ 37,520

AtNovember 30, the Company held 469,000 shares of Marum Resources Inc. (2000 - 469,000 shares;
market vaiue $37,520), acquired as part of the investment in the Chmchaga joint venture, with an
historical cost of $51, 590
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4, Mineral Properties
Accumulated costs in respect of mineral claims owned, leased or under option, consist of the following:
Siwashi Chinchaga Torngat November 30, May 31,
Silver Project Properties 2001 2001
Leases Tota! Total
Acquisition costs .
Beginning balance $ 180,000 $ - $ 21,9850 $ 201950 $ 178,600
Lease costs 12,500 - 5,800 18,300 23,350
Ending balarce 192,500 - 27,750 220,250 201,950
Deferred exploration
Beginning balance 713,182 50,000 78,595 841,777 739,209
Drilling ' 27,499 - - 27,499 40,000
Mapping and sampling 3,378 - - 3,378 11,445
Surveying 10,874 - - ) 10.874 51,123
Ending balance 754,933 50,800 78,595 883,528 841,777
Total deferred costs $ 947,433 $ 50,000 $ 106,345 $ 1,103,778  $1,043,727

a) Siwash Silver Leases

f)

On October 27, 1987, the Company was granted an option to acquire a 100% interest in certain mineral
claims situated in the Similkameen Mining Division of British Columbia.

The agreement required total consideration of $160,000 to be paid as foliows:

$ 6,000 - upen closing (paid);

$ 4,000 on or before April 3, 1988 (paid),

$ 10,000 on or before October 3, 1988 (paid);

$ 10,000 on or before October 3, 1989 (paid); and

$ 10.000 each subsequent year thereafter until October 3, 2002

On March' 18,1991, an amendment was made to the agreement dated October 27, 1987 to change the
payments to be made to the optionor. The amended payments are as follows:

$10,000 on or before October 3, 1990 (paid)
$12,500 each subsequent year thereafter until October 3, 2002.
(October 3, 2000 and prior payments were made)

On November 17, 1987, the Company paid $1,000 to Brenda Mines Ltd. (Brenda) to obtain certain
information on this property and gave Brenda the option to provide production financing should the
property come into production in the future. The Company has granted Brenda an option to acquire a
51% interest in the property for 90 days following a positive production recommendation by an
independent consulting firm. Terms of the option include reimbursing all exploration and feasibility study
expenditures incurred to that date up to a total of $2 million and providing all capital required to bring the
property into production. In the event that the property generates a positive cash flow, Brenda will retain
80% of profits until all development capital plus interest has been repaid, at which time proceeds will be
distributed based on interest in the project.

10.
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4, Mineral Properties (cont'd)

b)

If the Company decides to sell any or all of its interest in the property to a third party, it must first offer that
interest to Brenda on the same terms and Brenda shall have 60 days to advise the company of its

decision.

The Company has pledged a $2,500 term deposit as reclamatlon secunty as required by the Province of
British Columbia. ’

i) On September 18, 1996, the Company acquired a 100% interest in certain mineral claims situated
adjacent to the Similkameen Mining Division of British Columbia. The purchase price of the claims was
$15,000 (paid) and upon commencement of production of valuable minerais from the claims, the vendor
will receive a royalty of 1% of net smelter returns.

During May 2001 and continuing through November 2001 the Company commenced a drilling program
on the leases. Total exploration expenses of $60,454 were incurred during this period.

Chinchaga Project

On January 29, 1999 the company entered a joint venture agreement with Marum Resources Inc. to explore
for diamonds in the Chinchaga area of northern Alberta. Canada. The company must contribute $300,000 by
way of cash or cash equivalents, whereby a maximum contribution of $100,000 can be made through private
placement for shares in Marum Resources Inc. The company will receive 50% interest in Marum’s working
interest in the three townships of the Chinchaga area. . ‘

The agreement required total consideration of $300,000 to be paid as follows

$ 150,000 before June 30. 1999 for first 25% interest
$ 150,000 (amended) before September 30, 2000 for remaining 25% interest

During 1999 the Company exercised its option to purchase the 1,000,000 private placement units of Marum
Resources Inc. for $100,000 and expended $50,000 for the development of the Chinchaga project. Each
private placement unit contains one common share and one non-transferable share purchase warrant to
purchase one additional common share at a price of $0.12 per share, exercisable for a period of two years
from the date of payment for the units. During fiscal 2000 the Company exercised the 1,000,000 warrants and
purchased 1,000,000 shares of Marum fér $120,000.

During fiscal 2001 the Company and Marum amended the agreement whereby the Company has now eamed
its 50% interest in the project through the advance of $270,000 as detailed above. At November 30,2001 no
further activity had transpired and no adjustments to the joint venture contribution have been recorded.

Torngat Property

During November 1989, the Company was granted two (2) exploration permits totalling 108.5 square
kilometers in northern Quebec, know as the Torngat property. The Company has commenced aerial
exploration and surveying of the kimberlite dike area under an arrangement with four other companies
whereby common costs are shared. As part of the permits, the Quebec government has agreed to reimburse
50% of exploration expenditures up to a maximum of $220,000. The Company has received $26,300 in
reimbursement for expenses from the Quebec government.

11
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5. Share Capital
Authorized:
20,000,000 common shares without par vaiue
November 30, 2001 - . May 31, 2001
: o ‘ Number - ) - Number of
Issued - ) - . of Shares Amount = Shares Amount

Balance, beginning and end 9,012,183 ¢ 3,515664 - 9,012,183 $ 3,515,664

of period

Earnings Per Share
Fully diluted earnings per share has not been disclosed in ZOOO as the results are not materially dilutive.

The effect of potentially dilutive securities are nat included in the calculation of fully diluted earnings per
share as the result would be anti-dilutive.

Related Party Transactions

During the period the company paid $ 15,060 (200{)‘- $1'5.000) in management fees and $309 (2000 -
$749) in professional fees ta a company controlled by an individual who is a director of the company.

Income Taxes

The Company has resource deduction tax pools of’ approximétely $2,275,000 available to offset future
taxable income. _ :

Differences between Canadian and United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(MGAAPH)

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with GMP in Canada, which differed in some
respects from GAAP in the United States. The materiai differences between Canadian and United
States GAAP, in respect of _these firancial statements, are as follows:
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a) Mineral property exploration and development

Under United States GAAP, all mineral éxploration and development property expenditures are
expensed in the year incurred in an exploration stage company until there is substantial evidence
that a commercial body of ore has been located. Canadian GAAP allows resource exploration and
development property expenditures to be deferred during this process

Company’s financial statements is summarized below:

'Sixmonths  Sixmonths
November 30, November 30,
2001 2000
Consolidated statement of ~
operations and deficit -
Income (loss) for the period under o
Canadian GAAP '$ {74,761) $(11,976)
Write off of exploration expenses - -
Mineral property exploration and
development expenditures (60,051) (74,473)
United States GAAP' '$ (134,812) $ (86,449)
Gain (loss) per share — US GAAP $ (0.01) $ (0.’01')
Consolidated balanoe sheet
Assets
Mineral Properties R -
Canadian GAAP $ 1,103,778 $ 992,282
Resource property expendltures
{cumulative) - __(889,328) (812,282)
United States GAAP § 214450° $ 180,000
Deficit
Canadian GAAP $(2,038,731)  $(1,890,593)
Resource property expenditures
(cumulative) (889,328) (812,282)
United States GAAP $(2,928,059) $(2,702,875)

The effect on the

13
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9. Dnﬁerences between Canadian and United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
i (“GAAP’”) continued

b) Marketable Securities |

Undeér United States GAAP, the Company would classify the marketable securities as “Securities

available for resale”. The carrying value on the balance sheet at November 30, 2001 would remain
at $37,520 (2000 -$95,590) and the unrealized gain (loss)would be posted to shareholder’s equity
$Nil (2000 - $Nil). There wouid be no impact on the consolidated statement of operations in 2001

and 2000.
c) mcome Taxes

Under United States GAAP, the Company would have initially recorded an income tax asset for the
benefit of the resource deduction pools and losses carried forward. This asset would have been

reduced to $nil by a valuation allowance.

14
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BCSC

British Cofumbia Securities Commission

QUARTERLY AND YEAR END REPORT
BC FORM 51 -901 F
{previously Form 61)

Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act; The personal information requested on this form is collected under the authority of and used for
the purpose of admlmstenng the Securities Act. C) questions about the collection or use of this information can be directed to the Supervisor, Financial
Reporting (604-899-6729), PO Box 10142, Pacific Centre, 701 West Georaia Street, Vancouver BC V7Y 1L2. Toll Free in British Columbia 1-800-373-6393

INSTRUCTIONS
This report must be filed by the Exchange Issuers within 60 days of the
end of their first, second and third quarters and within 140
days of their year end. “Exchange issuer” means an issuer whose
securities are listed and posted for trading on the Canadian Venture
Exchange and are not listed and posted on any cther exchange or
quoted on’a trading or quotation system in Canada. Three .
schedules must be attached to this report as follows:
SCHEDULE A: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles are required as follows:
For the first, second and third financial quarters:
Interim financial statements prepared in accordance with section
1751 of the CICA Handbook, including the following: balance sheet .
income statement, statement of retained earnings, cash flow ’
statement, and notes to the financial statements.
The periods required to be presented, consistent with CICA
Handbook Section 1751 are as foliows:
* a balance sheet as of the end of the current interim period and
a comparative balance sheet as of the end of the immediately
preceding fiscal year
+ a statement of retained eamings cumulatively for the current fiscal
year-to-date, with a comparative statement for the comparable
year-to-date period of the immediately preceding fiscal year; and
+ income statements and cash flow statements for the current
interim period and cumulatively for the current fiscal year-to-date,
with comparative statements for the comparable interim periods
(current and year-to-date) of the immediately preceding fiscal
year
For the financial year end:
Annual audited financial statements prepared on a comparative
basis.
Exchange Issuers with a fiscal year less than or greater than 12
Months should refer to National Policy No. 51 Changes in Ending
Date of a Financial Year and in Reporting Status for guidance.
Issuers in the development stage are directed to the guidance
provided in CICA Accounting Guidelines AcG-11 Enterprises in the
Development Stage that states “enterprises in the development
Stage are encouraged to disclose in the income statement and in the
cash flow statement cumulative balances from the inception of the
development stage.”
Issues that have been involved in a reverse take-over should refer
to the guidance found in BCIN #52-701 (previously NIN #91/21) with
respect to such transactions including the requirement for disclosure
of supplementary information regarding the legal parent's prior
financial operations.
SCHEDULE B. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
The supptementary information set out below must be provided
when not included in Schedule A.
1. Analysis of expenses and deferred costs
Provide a breakdown of amounts presented in the financial
statements for the following: deferred or expensed exploration,
expensed research, deferred or expensed development, cost of
sales, marketing expenses, general and administrative expenses,
and any other material expenses reported in the income
statement and any other material deferred costs presented in the
balance sheet.

The breakdown should separately present, at a minimum, each
component that comprises 20% or more of the totai amount for a
material classification presented on the face of the financial
statements. All other components of a material classification may

" be grouped togéther under the heading "miscellaneous’ or "other
in the-cost breakdown; the total for "miscellaneous” should not
exceed 30% of the total for a. material classification.

Breakdowns are required for the year-to-date period only

Breakdowns are not required for comparative periods.

Issuers in the development stage are reminded that Section

3(9)(b) of the BC Securities Commission's Rules requires a

schedule or note to the financial statements containing an

analysis of each of exploration, research, development and
administration costs, whether expensed or deferred and if the
issuer is a natural resource issuer, that analysis for each material

* property. Because the analysis required by Rule 3(3)(b) must be
inciuded in the financiai statements, the information does not
have to be repeated in Schedule B. Consistent with CICA

Accounting Guidelines AcG-1 1, staff considers an issuer ta be in

the development stage when it is devoting substantially all of its

operations have not commenced. Further, in staff's view, the lack
of significant revenues for the past two years normally indicates
that an issuer is in the development stage.

2. Related party transactions
Provide disclosure of all related party transactions as specified in
Section 3840 of the CICA Handbook.

3. Summary of securities issued and options granted during the
period
Provide the following information for the year-to-date period:

(a) summary of securities issued during the period, including
date of issue, type of security (common shares, convertible
debentures, etc.), type of issue (private placement, public
offering, exercise of warrants, etc.) number, price, total
proceeds, type of consideration (cash, property, etc.) and
commission paid, and

(b) summary of options granted during the period, including
date, number, name of optionee for those options granted to
insiders, generic description of other optionees (e.g.
employees”,) exercise price and expiry date.

4. Summary of securities as at the end of the reporting period
Provide the following information as at the end of the reporting
period:

(a) description of authorized share capital including number of
shares for each class, dividend rates on preferred shares
and whether or not cumulative, redemption and conversion
and

(b) number and recorded value for shares issued and
outstanding

(c) description of options, warrants and convertible securities
outstanding, including number or amount, exercise or
conversion price and expiry date, and any recorded value,
and

(d) number of shares in each class of shares subject to escrow
or pooling agreements.

5. List the names of the directors and officers as at the date this
report is signed and filed.

FINSI-S0IF(Reverse) Rev.2000/12/{9




SCHEDULE C: MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1. General Instructions

(2a) Management discussion and analysis provides management
with the opportunity to discuss an issuer's business, current
financial results, position and future prospects.

(b) Focus the discussion on material information, including liquidity,
capital resources, known trends, commitments, events, risks
or uncertainties, that is reasonably expected to have a
material effect on the issuer.

(c) Foran issuer with active ongoing operations the discussion
should be substantive (e.g. generally two to four pages in
length); for an issuer with limited operations the discussion
may not be as extensive (e.g. one page).

(d) The discussion must be factual, balanced and non-promotional.

(e) Where the discussicn relates to a mineral project, as defined in
National Instrument 43-1 01 "Standards of Disclosure for
Minera! Projects,’ the disclosure must comply with NI 43-101.

2. Description of Business T

Provide a brief description of the issuer's business. Where an -

issuer is inactive and has no business, disclose these facts

together with a description of any plans to reactivate and the
business the issuer intends to pursue.
3. Discussion of Operations and Financial Condition

Provide a meaningful discussion and analysis of the issuer's

operations for the current year-to-date period presented in the

financial statements. Discuss the issuer's financial condition as

at the date of the most recent balance sheet presented in the

financial statements.

The following is a list of items that should be addressed in

management's discussion and analysis of the issuer’s operations

and financial condition. This is not intended to be an exhaustive

list of the relevant items.

(a) expenditures included in the analysis of expenses and deferred
costs required under Securities Rule 3(9)(b) and Schedule B;

(b) acquisition or abandonment of resource properties material to
the issuer including material terms of any acquisition or disposition;

(c) acquisition or disposition of other material capital assets
including material terms of the acquisition, or disposition;

(d) material write-off or write-down of assets;

(e) transactions with related parties, disclosed in Schedule B or the
notes to the financial statements;

{f) material contracts or commitments;

(9) material variances between the issuer's financia! resuits and .
information previously disclosed by the issuer, (for example if
the issuer does not achieve revenue and profit estimates
previously released, discuss this fact and the reasons for the
variance);

(h) material terms of any existing third party investor relations
arrangements or contracts including:

i. the name of the person;
ii. the amount paid during the reporting period; and
iii. the services provided during the reporting period,;
legal proceedings;
contingent liabilities;
default under debt or other contractual obligations;
a treach of corporate, securities or other laws, or of an
issuer's listing agreement with the Canadian Venture
exchange including the nature of the breach, potential
ramifications and what is being done to remedy it;
regulatory approval requirements for a significant transaction
including whether the issuer has obtained the required
. approval or has applied for the approval;
(n) management changes; or
(o) special resolutions passed by shareholders.
4. Subsequent Events
" Discuss any significant events and transactions that occurred
during the time from the date of the financial statements up to the
date that this report is certified by the issuer.
5. Financings, Principal Purposes and Milestones
(2) In a tabular format, compare any previously disclosed principal
purposes from a financing to actual expenditures made during
the reporting periad.
Explain any material variances and the impact, if any, on the
issuer's abiiity to achieve previously disclosed objectives and
milestones.
6. Liquidity and Solvency
. Discuss the issuer's working capital position and its ability to meet
its ongoing obligations as they become due.
How to Flle Under National Instrument 13-101 - System for
Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval (SEDAR)
BC Form 51 -901 F Quarterly and Year End Reports are filed under
Category of Filing: Continuous Disclosure and Filing Type: Interim
Financial Statsmenrts or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule A
" {Financial Statements) is filed under Document Type: Interim Financial
Statements or Annual Financial Statements. Schedule 8
. (Supplemertary Information) and Schedule C (Management
Discussion) are f lled under Document Type: BC Form 51 -901 F
(zreviousty Document Type Form 61 (BC)).
Meeting the Form Requirements
BC Form 51 -901 F consists of three parts: Instructions to schedules A,
- B and C, issuer detrils and a certificate. To comply with National
instrument 13-1 01 it is not necessary to reproduce the instructions that
are set out in BC Form 51 -801 F. A cover page to the schedules titled
BC Form 51 -901 F that includes the issuer details and certificate is all
that is required {o meet the BC Form 51 -901 F requirements. The form
of certificate should be amended so as to refer to one or two of the
three schedules required to complete the report.

(m)

~{(b)

ISSUER DETAILS FOR THE QUARTER ENDED DATE OF REPORT
NAME OF ISSUER YYMM/DD
International Tower Hill Mines Ltd. Noveraber 30, 2001 02/01/03
ISSUER'S ADDRESS

837 West Hastings Street, Suite 507

CITY/PROVINCE POSTAL CODE ISSUER FAX NO. ISSUER TELEPHONE NO.
Vancouver, BC V6C 3N6 (604) 685-5777 (604) 685-1017
CONTACT PERSON CONTACT'S POSITION CONTACT TELEPHONE NO.
Anton (Tony) J. Drescher Director (604) 685-1017
CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS WEB SITE ADDRESS

mail@harbourpacific.com www.towerhillmines.com

CERTIFICATE

The three schedules required to complete this Quarterly Report are attached and the disclosure contained therein has been approved by the board of Directors.

A copy of this Quarterly Report will be provided to any shareholder who requests it.

DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED
Y Y|M M|D
» “Anton (Tony) J. Drescher” Anton (Tony) J. Drescher 0 | 210 l 110 l 3
DIRECTOR'S SIGNATURE PRINT FULL NAME DATE SIGNED
Y Y|M M|D D
> “Narman J_Bonin" Norman J. Bonin ol2]ol1]o]3

FINSI-9CIF(Revers) Rev. 20004 12/19
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A Deferred Exploration Expenses
- See Note 4 — Mineral Properties

B. Aggregate amount of non-arms’s length transactions

- SeeNote 7 - Related Party Transactions

A.  Securities issued during the period under review
- See Note 5 — Share Capital

B. Options 'graht'edv during the period under review
- None = 7~ '

A. = Share capital at end of quarter

Authorized: 20,000,000 common shares with no par value
Issued: - 9,012,183 common shares -

B. Options and warrants outstanding at end of quarter
Options - none
‘Warrants - none -

List of officers and directors as at November 30, 2001

Officers: Anton J. Drescher — President; Donna Moroney — Secretary

Directors: . Anton J. Drescher; Norman J. Bonin; Roland Perkins
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Schedule C: Management Discussion

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

| The Company is in the‘business‘of acquiring, exploring and evaluating mineral properties, and
either joint venturing or developing these properties further or disposing of them when the
evaluation is completed. At November 30, 2001, the Company was in the expioration stage
and had interests in properties in British Columbia, Alberta and Quebec, Canada.

2. EQUITY FINANCING

~ No stock bptions were granted nor exercised during the period.

3, EXPLORATION / PROPERTY UPDATE

a)  Exploration Permits granted — Torngat explorati_on' area — Northern Quebec

D'ufing" November 1999, the Company acquired a 100% interes: in two Quebec Mineral
'Exploration Permits in the Torngat diamond exploration area of Northern Quebec for a total
consideration of $11,100. Additional lease maintenance costs of $16,650 were paid to date.

Permit 1467 covers 58 square kms. Permit 1437 covers 50.5 square kms. Both permits adjoin
~ the kimberlite dyke-bearing property held by Twin ‘Gold Corporation (TWGT).

The Company completed its 2000 Tormngat diamond exploration program in northern Quebec.
- Two helicopter-supported mapping and sampling programs were carried out in August and
September. The objective of the 2000 Torngat exploration program was to catalogue
kimberlite dykes that were visible from the air and to take samples for geochemical analysis.
One large 5-metre wide dyke was discovered. Its linear extent remains unknown. Geochemical
analysis indicates that the kimberlite originated in the diamond stability field and is a potential
diamond host. One sample was submitted for caustic dissolution and no diamonds were
recovered. The Company incurred exploration costs and mineral lease costs totailing $5,800
during the six-month period ended November 30, 2001. The Company intends to carry out a
follow-up sampling and mapping program in mid-2002. Its objectives will be to take
significantly larger samples from various locations on the 5-metre wide dyke and to explore
for additional dykes on the basis of aitborne geophysical data.
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b) Chinchaga Diamond and Metals Project — Northefn Albertd

During the period, the Company did not incur any exploration costs with regards to the
Chinchaga Diamond and Metals Project, Northern Alberta. The Company is evaluating the
results of past exploration and is implementing a land management program to coincide with

~ the end of the first assessment work cycle.

c) Siwash Creek Proiect — Similkameen Mining Division of British Columbia

The Company commenced its Spring 2001 diamond drill program on its 100% owned Siwash
Property in south-central British Columbia. The Siwash Property is located in close proximity
to both Brenda Mines Ltd. (copper and molybdenum production) and Fairfield Minerals Ltd.
(gold production) mineral projects. The 2001 program has been designed to further delineate
the gold, silver and copper values intersected in the northeastern portion of the property. Drill
results to date indicate a similar style of mineralization as that found at Brenda Mines. In
addition, these drill results indicate that the goid/silver/copper mineralization extends
approximately 300 meters in a north-south direction and 600 meters in an east-west direction
‘to a depth of approximately 125 meters. Drilling also indicates that this zone is still open to
the west, north, east and depth. - :

The 2001 drill program will compose of five drill holes varying from 150 meters to 250

“ “meters, AZ 0°dip varying from =55° to 65° and will be concentrated in the area north and east

of holes 96-3, 97-1 and 97-5. All holes will be drilled in the mineralized granodiorite. For the

. six-month period ended November 30, 2001, the Company incurred total exploration expenses

of $41,751, which had been incurred and paid. The Company also incurred $12,500 on lease

- . costs.

The Company will advise furthef as results of the program are r_ece‘ivéd.‘ _

4. | CORPORATE BUSINESS

a) General and Administrative costs for.the six months ended November 30, 2001 were
$85,011 . (2000: $42,773) representing an increase .of $42,238. The majority of the
increase in general and administrative expenses was due to an increase in professional
fees of $26,164 to $41,359 for the fiscal period ended November 30, 2001 (2000:
$15,195). This increase in professional fees was due to the Company’s costs for listing
on Berlin and Frankfurt Stock Exchanges and completion of the Company’s 20F filing
with the US Securities and Exchange Commission. There was also an increase in Stock
exchange and filing fees of $15,983 to $19,194 for the fiscal period ended November
30,2001(2000:$3,211).This increase was due to filing fees on the Berlin and Frankfurt
Stock Exchanges. Included in the General and Administrative costs are $15,000 (2000:
$15,000) in management fees.
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During the period, the Company paid $909 (2000: $749) in professional fees to a
company controlled by an individual who is an officer of the Company. Interest
income for the period ended November 30, 2001 was $10,250 compared to $12,174 for
the period ended November 30, 2000. The decrease in interest income is a resuit of the
decrease of interest rates and redemption of guaranteed investment certificate.

b)  The Company did not incur any specific expenditures relating to investor relations
activities for the period ended November 30, 2001 and up to the date of this report.
Investor relations activities were conducted in-house by management. :

S. 'OTHER

The Company’s Form 20F Registration Statement has been filed with the United States

“Securities and Exchange Commission and is effective under File No. 0-31096. This

registration satisfies the Exchange Act requirement of full disclosure of ali material facts and
allows the Company to trade its securities in the United States within the rules and regulations

- of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act.

The Company was approved for listing on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and began trading
October 3, 2001 .under the trading symbol “IW9”. This listing is in addition tc the Berlin
Stock Exchange — unofficial Regulated Market listing announced in July of this year. Share
quotes can be found at www.comdirect.de or www.berlinerboerse.de/english/aktien/.

The Company’s shares commenced trading on the NASD OTC Bulletin Board under the
trading symbol TWHMTF effective October 5, 2001.




